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Financial Summary

MBEREE

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years

AEBEBEREMBRFEZCTERE  BE

BENMIFERRERIT

is as follows:
RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December
HE+T-A=1+—-HILEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE = ZZ—=f ZT—F =ZT-ITF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETR
(Restated)  (Restated)
€=27) (BE51)
Revenue Wiz 830,704 634,171 498,834 556,868 543,716
Cost of sales SHERA (656,811) (501,659) (400,622) (436,163) (417,291)
Gross profit EF 173,893 132,512 98,212 120,705 126,425
Other income and expenses, Hi A RRY (16,990) 31,168 5,979 53,212 4,224
other gains and losses Hiblias R E1E
Selling and distribution expenses  $5& &7 57 X (46,745) (37,678) (25,575) (24,236) (23,319
Research and development gL (25,135) (19,284) (17,600) (17,743) (16,299)
expenditure
Administrative expenses 1TERY, (48,388) (44,314) (36,483) (32,817) (29,309)
Listing expenses Haiili b = - - (14,908) (2,699)
Finance costs A (31,629) (13,654) (13,317) (15,113) (14,921)
Profit before tax syl 5,006 48,750 11,216 69,100 44,202
Taxation Fi1g (2,449) (9,455) (3,794) (12,207) (6,666)
Net profit ] 2,557 39,295 7,422 56,893 37,5636
Other comprehensive expense: Hi2mERY : (44) (265) (207) - -
Exchange difference arising on BREMEAEN
translation =8
Profit attributable to: AT AL RS
Equity holders of the Company ARAIRERFEA 2,513 39,030 7,215 56,893 37,536
Non-controlling interests Flsudiizr Ty - - - - -
Earnings per share - Basic FIREN—-EK 0.01 0.11 0.02 0.23 0.16

(RMB)

(AR¥)

Note: To conform with the presentation of the financial statements for year
ended 31 December 2014, warranty expenses in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income shown above have been

restated on the same basis.

i REBECZ-NEL_A=+—HILFEUH
BERWENFTNER B UERIIZEGE2H
Wean sk PR ER X B IRER T NETTES -



CRERSHANEARARAY ¢
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As at 31 December

W+t=A=+-H

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

—E-mE —EF-=F E——F T——F =ZZ-IZF

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR AR%®Trt AREBTT ARETT AR®ET

Non-current assets FRBEE 677,403 683,817 561,344 449,026 318,711
Current assets MEBEE 666,980 501,588 384,047 455,521 411,191
Total assets BEMEE 1,344,380 1,185,405 945,391 904,547 729,902
Current liabilities mEaRE (797,127) (655,080) (580,024) (462,911) (614,919)
Total assets less current liabilities  EELZEMTZHEE 547,256 530,325 365,367 441,636 114,983
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (157,882) (143,464) (83,828) (167,312) (48,728)
Owner's equity A N NER 389,374 386,861 281,639 274,324 66,255
Non-controlling interests JEIERRRERS = - _ _ _

Equity attributable to owners AREEBA

of the Company [Ef e 389,374 386,361 281,639 274,324 66,255

The financial information for year ended 31 December 2010
has been prepared upon the Reorganisation (as defined in
the Prospectus) as if the group structure, at the time when
the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange, had been in
existence throughout the years concerned. The result ended 31
December 2010, and the assets, liabilities and non — controlling
interests as at 31 December 2010 have been extracted from
the Prospectus.

HE-_Z-—ZF+_A=T—HIEFENUKE
HERrBd(EERARER)RFEE - B%
EEE(RORERZ AT EHR)RBEFED&F
fF-HE_ZT-—TF+-_A=+—HLFEZE
BR-Z-ZFT_A=T—HEWEE  AER
R RN AR ER TR -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEBE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby gladly present the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

In 2014, despite the strong economy recovery of the U.S., the growth of European and other emerging
economies showed a weak trend. The development of Chinese economy might seem to remain steady, but its
economic reform and industrial restructuring were still under the progress of further deepening, appearing to
have entered the “New Normality”. Against such background, the Group seized the opportunities in the growing
automobile industry in China by fully exercising its leading technical strengths amongst its peers and coping
with the direction of market development, resulting in an increased volume in its new orders. With our proactive
marketing strategies, we continuously increased our efforts in research and development as well as strengthened
our competitiveness in the market. With the excellent results recorded with significant growth in sales and
revenue in the past year, which further consolidated our leading position in the industry.

Looking back into 2014, the Group took a conservative approach to launch its development strategies and
plans, strived to increase productivity, identified the automaker customers with strong potentials for growth
in our domestic OEM manufacturer market, and coordinated the synchronized research and development
of shock-absorber products among the existing automaker customers in terms of the development of new
vehicle model, resulting in a satisfying result and a significant increase in the number of new purchase orders
of automobile components from some of the automobile manufacturers. In addition, the Group also speeded
up the development of after-sales market in China, aggressively explored new customer base and research and
development products, which have made us achieved remarkable growth in scuh segment

However, we, at the same time, has paid close attention to the slowdown of the growth of Chinese automaking
industry. With the improving technology requirements, raising costs and increasing competitive pressure in
the automotive components manufacture industry, profit margin is gradually shrinking. In order to facilitate the
diversified development of the Group’s businesses and further expand its asset portfolio and revenue, so as to
fight for higher value for shareholders, the Group has also begun to deploy the related new businesses such as
foreign financial industry chain service.

On 31 December 2014, the Group officially announced to acquire a financial group. Such group strives to provide
comprehensive wealth management and investment service to customers from Hong Kong, Mainland China
and other major markets in the world. It will build a new platform for the Group, which will accelerate its pace
of development of new businesses. Mr. Yan Haiting, former non-executive director of the Group and | have
acted as executive director effective from January 2015. We will take up the new responsibility to develop new
businesses with our over 20 years of experience in finance and investment areas. Capitalized on the proactive
marketing strategies of the Group as well as our extensive experience from the management, the Group's
existing automobile component production business could be supported by the new business in terms of finance
and investment. Through which, a synergy can be created to further enhance the Company's overall efficiency.

Looking forward to 2015, the Chinese economy would remain a steady growth under the “New Normality.” The
industry structure of automobile industry in China will continue to optimize and upgrade with promising prospects.
The Group will keep abreast with the market trend. We aim at practicing a good risk control and maintaining
its cost advantage while proactively expanding various businesses. We also continuously upgrade its research
and development and technology standards in order to strengthen our corporate competitiveness. Meanwhile,
the Group will be actively implement the diversified development of its new businesses. Starting from strategic
planning, we aim to strengthen the synergies, achieve the rapid growth from new business models and attain
desired return on capital gains, through investments, mergers or acquisitions of related businesses and related
assets in China and overseas.

| would like to extend my sincere greetings to our Shareholders, the Group’s management and all staff, and
express my heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, members of the board of directors, all government officials,
all our customers and business partners for their generous support and trust. We will adhere closely to our
commitment to lay a solid foundation for the long-term development of the Group and to further capitalize on
unique edges of automotive components in the Group and capture market opportunities, thereby bringing greater
investment returns for our Shareholders as a whole.

Wilson SEA
Chairman and Non-executive Director
27 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE R DT

Chief Executive Officer's Statement:

“In 2014, the economy of the PRC maintained a stable growth
with the background of “New Normality” phase. Benefiting
from the continuous growth in the PRC automobile market
and the unremitting efforts of all staff of the Group, we had
achieved outstanding performance and significant income
growth in both domestic OEM market and domestic after-
sales market segments. With the industrial upgrading and
structure adjustment of the domestic automobile industry, the
development opportunities from the automotive component
industry are increasing constantly. We will strive to improve
our production and operations, promote the Group's long-term
development by strategies, and create maximum value for the
Shareholders by leveraging on the technology innovation and its
brand advantages.”

Mr. Zhao Zhijun,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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INTRODUCTION

Engaged in the research and development, design,
manufacturing and sale of various automobile shock-absorbers,
the Group has over 50 years of experience in the automobile
industry. After years of development, the Group has become a
leading independent supplier of automobile shock-absorbers in
the PRC and established stable long-term business relationship
with leading automobile manufacturers in the PRC, including
FAW-Volkswagen, Chery, Haima Auto, Dongfeng Automobile,
Beijing Automobile, Changan Automobile, Chongging Lifan,
Geely, Jianghuai Automobile, SAIC Motor, Dongfeng Peugeot.

MARKET REVIEW

In 2014, the automobile industry of China kept a sustainable
growth. According to the statistics from China Association of
Automobile Manufacturers, the sales volume of automobiles in
the PRC increased by 6.9% to 23,490,000 units on a year-on-
year basis, reflecting that growth rate was 7 percentage points
less compared to 2013. Since automotive component industry
is closely related to the automobile manufacturing industry,
it also reaped the benefits. As the Group has been, over the
years, enhancing production capacity, stepping up its efforts to
develop automobile manufacturers which have strong growth
potential and carrying out research and development of shock-
absorbers for the new models of automobiles with automobile
manufacturers, the Group was able to secure new purchase
orders of automotive components from some automobile
manufacturers. Meanwhile, along with rising costs of labour
and raw material purchases to varying extent, the fixed capital
investment increased and domestic consumer price index in the
PRC rose in recent years has exerted pressure on cost control
of the Group continuously.

The Group’s main products are shock-absorbers for various
types of vehicles and are mainly sold to domestic OEM
and domestic after-sales market customers. The Group
sold 7,143,000 units of automobile shock-absorbers for the
year ended 31 December 2014, representing a growth of
1,541,000 units or 27.5% over the corresponding period last
year. The Group’s revenue amounted to RMB830.7 million,
representing an increase of RMB196.5 million or 31.0%
over the corresponding period last year. Profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to RMB2.6 million, representing a
decrease of 36.7 million or 93.4% less than the corresponding
period last year. For the year ended 31 December 2014, basic
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earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.01. For the year ended
31 December 2014, in terms of principal business segments,
domestic OEM business achieved a sales income of RMB751.1
million, accounting for 90.4% of the total income, while the
domestic automobile aftermarket business achieved a sales
income of RMB79.6 million, accounting to 9.6% of the total
income.

DOMESTIC OEM MARKET

In 2014, thanks to the stable growth maintained in the
automobile industry of China and the Group's efforts in keep
enhancing production capacity and developing new clients,
while simultaneously researching and developing of products
for new model of automobiles with automobile manufacturers
over the years, orders for the Group’s new products increased.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's sales
volume of shock-absorbers in the domestic OEM market
amounted to 6,092,000 units, representing a growth of
approximately 1,399,000 units or 29.8% over the corresponding
period of 2013. Under this background, the sales income
derived from the domestic OEM market for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to RMB751.1 million, representing
an increase of RMB185.7 million or approximately 32.8% over
the corresponding period of 2013.

DOMESTIC AFTER-SALES MARKET

The Group stepped up its efforts to expand its after-sales
market and develop new products. With unremitting dedication
to the development of the after-sales market, the sales
volume of the Group recorded growth. For the year ended 31
December 2014, the Group's sales income derived from the
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domestic after-sales market amounted to RMB79.6 million,
representing an increase of RMB10.8 million or 15.7% over the
corresponding period of 2013, which was mainly driven by the
growth in sales volume. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group's sales volume generated from the aftermarket was
approximately 1,051,000 units, increased by 142,000 units or
15.6% over the corresponding period of 2013.

OUTLOOK

From the macro perspective, in order to maintain a steady
and moderate economic growth, the PRC government has
continued to implement strategic measures to further stimulate
domestic demand, and has been adjusting the structure of the
relevant industry at a new normal state. As one of the industries
under the industrial revitalization plan, the organizational
structure of the automobile industry is being optimized and
improved, thereby driving the consumption of automobiles as
well as facilitating the long-term development of the domestic
automobile market. The Group is confident about the prospects
of the automobile industry in the PRC.

To reinforce its current leading position in the international
automobile OEM market and the domestic after-sales market
and to create highest values for shareholders and stakeholders,
the Group will implement the following strategies:

(i) Taking advantage of the expanded production
facilities to enhance production capacity and
efficiency
In line with the plan to expand product offerings, enlarge
the market share and extend the coverage of new business,
the Group has greatly expanded its production facilities and
enhanced its production capacity through construction and
investment by stages during last few years. Currently, the
Group has three major production bases in Nanyang City
of Henan Province, Haikou City of Hainan Province and
Ordos City of Inner Mongolia respectively, with the annual
production capacity aggregating approximately 15,000,000
units of automobile shock-absorbers. Meanwhile, the
Group has also increased the ancillary production capacity
of major components such as piston rods, storage tanks
and working cylinders so as to maintain its production
quality and cost advantage.
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(ii) FAAFEF FERRFNTHD B -

(ii) Exploring new customers, new products and new

(iii)

(iv)

market segments to increase market share

While continuing to supply quality, reliable and high-
standard products, the Group will further enhance
synchronous development with the existing key customers
in terms of new product models to guarantee a closer
strategic cooperation between us. In addition, the Group
will actively expand its customer base and attract new
customers, including overseas OEM who purchases
automobile parts and components in the PRC. With the
yearly increase in sales volume of new cars, we expect an
ongoing increase in the demand for shock absorbers in the
after-sales market. The Group will also plan to establish a
nationwide distributor network so as to enlarge the market
share for the after-sales market.

Enhancing the level of research and development
and technologies to strengthen competitiveness
Nanyang Cijan Auto Shock Absorber Co., Ltd. (“Nanyang
Cijan"), a subsidiary of the Group, has been awarded
“National New High-tech Enterprise” and the Group has
also established two research and development centres
in Henan, China and Asti, Italy. We will keep investing
with an aim to improve the Group's overall research and
development capability, technological level and product
reputation to strengthen our competitiveness.

Maintaining cost advantages

The Group will strive to cooperate with secondary
components suppliers for more flexible procurement terms
and more competitive procurement costs through mass
production and efficient product research and development.
Meanwhile, the Group will maintain its edge on production
cost by improving its capability and standards of self-
produced key component production through upgraded
production lines, a higher level of automation and simplified
production processes.
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(v) Developing the shock absorber market for railway

transportation

Through years of research and development and testing,
the Group has made significant progress on shock absorber
production specifically for railways transportation. Currently,
the Group is proactively seeking to obtain customers’
agreement for trial application and corresponding feedback
so as to become their qualified supplier. The Group believes
that shock absorber products for railway transportation will
make positive contribution to the Group's revenue in the
near future.

(vi) Pursuing rapid growth through investments,

acquisitions and mergers

Based on its strategic deployment and development
needs, the Group will aggressively seek for investment
opportunities to enhance synergies through investment in
the automobile component business and relevant assets
in the PRC and overseas markets and acquisitions and
mergers in related business and assets, thereby achieving
rapid growth of the business and fruitful return on capital.

(vii) Diversification and new business

To diversify its business and widen its sources of revenue,
the Group has embarked on certain new businesses (“New
Businesses”), including investment immigration consulting
service as well as financial consulting service, and built new
platform for New Businesses for a better development
by conducting acquisitions and establishing joint-venture
partnerships with reputable companies. Meanwhile,
synergies may be created between the Group’'s New
Businesses and current automobile component production
business in areas of investment and financing, which is in
the interests of the Company and shareholders as a whole.

The Group strongly believes that by adhering to the above
strategies, it will be able to further maintain and strengthen
its competitive edges and consolidate its leading position in
the market, which will in turn fully satisfy the rising demand
of products and services and increasingly stringent product
requirements from customers, grasp growth opportunities
arising from market changes, and create long-term values
and returns for shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenue
increased by 31.0% to RMB830.7 million from RMB634.2
million in 2013, of which revenue from the OEM market rose
by 32.8% to RMB751.1 million from RMB565.4 million in 2013.
Revenue generated from the automobile aftermarket jumped by
15.7% to RMB79.6 million from RMB68.8 million in 2013. Such
increase was primarily due to the Group’s continuous efforts in
improving the production capacity and developing new products
simultaneously to meet the needs of automobile manufacturers
and the increase of sales resulted from the increasing demand
for the after-sales market.

The table below shows an analysis of the Group’s sales volume,
average selling price and revenue by its business segments for
each of the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014:
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Average
Sales volume  selling price Revenue
HE FHEEER &
2014 (Units) (RMB) (RMB’000)
—E-NF () (ARY) (ARM%TFR)
OEM market [REBRIER TS 6,091,901 123.3 751,085
Automobile after-sales market HEEETS 1,050,739 75.8 79,619
Total A&t 7,142,640 830,704
Average
Sales volume selling price Revenue
HE CFHEEER &
2013 (Units) (RMB) (RMB'000)
—T—=F (1) (AE®) (ARBTT)
OEM market [REERER TS 4,692,710 120.5 565,403
Automobile after-sales market HEEETS 908,901 75.7 68,768
Total &% 5,601,611 634,171




Cost of sales

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's cost of
sales increased by 30.9% to RMB656.8 million from RMB501.7
million in 2013. Of which: Cost of sales for the OEM market
increased by 31.5% to RMB591.0 million from RMB449.3
million in 2013, which was mainly due to the expansion of the
additional production capacity and higher sales volume; cost of
sales for the automobile after-sales market increased by 25.8%
to RMB65.8 million from RMB52.3 million in 2013, which
was mainly driven by the growth of business and increase in
production costs.

Gross profit

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the overall gross
profit increased by 31.2% to RMB173.9 million from RMB132.5
million in the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Gross profit for the OEM Market

The gross profit of the Group increased by 37.9% from
RMB116.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
RMB160.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2014. Such
increase was mainly due to an increase in revenue.

Gross profit for the automobile aftermarket

The gross profit of the Group reduced by 15.9% from RMB16.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 to RMB13.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2014. This was
mainly due to the offset in revenue generated from the new
automobile after-sales market by higher increase in costs.
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The table below shows an analysis of the Group's revenue,
gross profit and gross profit margin by its business segments
for each of the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014

TR EZ2-_TE—=ZFR_T—NF+ = A
T+ HUEFESFRSEBSHE D 2 AEE
a2k« EFREFRZ DT

Revenue Gross profit
g E#  Gross profit
2014 (RMB’000) (RMB’'000) margin
—ZE—MF (AE¥T ) (AR¥F ) EFIZE
OEM Market R BRSNS 751,085 160,107 21.3%
Automobile after-sales market BEERTS 79,619 13,786 17.3%
Total &% 830,704 173,893 20. 9%
Revenue Gross profit
Iz EF Gross profit
2013 (RMB'000) (RMB'000) margin
—T—=F (AR®Fm) (ARETFIT) FEA=E
OEM Market [REEERER TS 565,403 116,072 20.5%
Automobile after-sales market HEEETIS 68,768 16,440 23.9%
Total &% 634,171 132,512 20.9%
Gross profit margin ER=E

For the year ended 31 December 2014, overall gross profit
margin maintained relatively flat from the year ended 31
December 2013, which is 20.9%. Such slight increase was
mainly due to the rise in the gross profit margin of our products
in the OEM Market benefited from the increase in revenue,
offset by the decline in the gross profit margin of the new
automobile after-sales market.

Other income and expenses, other gains and losses
The other income and expenses, other gains and losses
plunged 154.5% from a gain of RMB31.2 million in 2013 to a
loss of RMB17.0 million in 2014. Such decrease was mainly
due to the following factors: (i) Nanyang Cijan was relocated
to new plant area and approximately RMB33.7 million of
impairment provision for certain production facilities in old plant
area and idle plants, ancillary facilities and office buildings after
the relocation was made; (ii) government grants received by
Nanyang Cijan for this period decreased by RMB9.3 million
compared with the same period of 2013; and (iii) the Group has
gained investment return of approximately RMB4.0 million in
long-term investment fund in 2014.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by 23.9% from
RMB37.7 million in 2013 to RMB46.7 million in 2014. Such
increase was primarily due to an increase in transportation
costs and the marketing expenses of the products in line with
the increase in its sales volume.

Research and development expenses

The research and development expenses rose by 30.1%
from RMB19.3 million in 2013 to RMB25.1 million in 2014.
Such increase in expenses were for (i) increased efforts on
the research of applying shock-absorber related technology to
different models of automobiles; and (ii) additional development
costs of shock-absorbers for newly-developed automobiles.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses increased by 9.3% from RMB44.3
million in 2013 to RMB48.4 million in 2014. Such increase was
mainly due to increase in wages for administrative staff and
management expenses.

Finance costs

The finance costs soared 130.7% from RMB13.7 million in 2013
to approximately RMB31.6 million in 2014. Such increase was
mainly due to the cease of capitalization of finance costs related
to production capacity expansion project, which commenced
in the prior years, after such project was completed. In 2014,
the Company did not capitalize the interest expenses related
to expansion project of Nanyang Xichuan production base as
properties under development (2013: RMB14.8 million had
been capitalized as properties under development).

Income tax expense

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s overall
income tax expense was approximately RMB2.4 million,
decreased by RMB7.1 million or approximately 74.7% over
the year ended 31 December 2013. The decrease in income
tax expense was mainly due to a significant decrease in the
amount of taxable income generated by Nanyang Cijan.
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Net profit for the year and net profit margin

For the year ended 31 December 2014, profit for the year
recorded a drop of 93.4% from RMB39.3 million in the
corresponding period of 2013 to RMB2.6 million in 2014.
The decrease in the Group’s net profit was mainly because
the increased income and investment returns recorded by
the Group during this year were offset by the rise of financial
expenses and depreciation cost, especially by the large
provisions for asset impairment made at the end of this period
for relocation of plant area.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Net current liabilities

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net current liabilities
decreased to RMB130.1 million from RMB153.5 million as of 31
December 2013, representing a drop of 15.2%. Such decrease
was primarily due to increase in bank deposit at the end of
period as a result of cash flow increment in operating activities
arising from the rise in revenue and issuance of corporate
bonds in 2014.

Financial position and bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's total cash and bank
balances, most of which were denominated in RMB and
HK dollars, amounted to approximately RMB171.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 59.3% as
compared with that of RMB107.4 million, most of which were
denominated in RMB, as at 31 December 2013. The increase
was primarily attributable to the growth in revenue, the cash
recovery from the operating activities and fund raising by
the Company through issuing bonds for the new business in
preparation.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's total borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB486.6 million, representing an
increase of approximately 13.0% as compared with RMB430.8
million as at 31 December 2013. Out of the total borrowings,
short-term bank borrowings due within one year amounted to
approximately RMB338.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 14.6% as compared with RMB295.6 million as
at 31 December 2013, while mid-to-long-term borrowings due
after one year amounted to approximately RMB147.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 9.3% as compared
with RMB135.2 million as at 31 December 2013.

FEHF R A RZR
REBEE-Z-—NE+-_A=1+—HItFE £
AT - =FRBAMAREIIEETED
9B4%E_FT—NFARE26HE T - AEE4E
FEL - EEZHNB|ARE B L FREERA
R RIEEWEHIEIN - B I R 75 B AL 0 &
WERA EASEZER - LEBHRMHL
=B KA ERERE -

nBEESRMEER

REBAEEFEE

R-ZE—NF+_A=+—0 AEERBPEE
FHEH T =Ft+_A=+—HBARK1535H
BILHAD152%EAREI1301EHETT ° WEAE
DHN T —HFRAEEmHRECETHNE
ST - URBITEEES - HMERARIE
TIIF A BRIG N

AR R RITER

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—0  A5LEHRSRIE
THABBBEODAREKITINBETL(KEIUAAR
MREESE) BE-T—=—F+-_A=+—HA
R¥107.48 & LB (KEBAARBIIE) « 10
#959.3% * ZIEINEZHPUW AL - LEIEE
BUKIE S LA R AR R A2 A3 E IS5 R m %
EEFELESTH -

R-_ZE—NE+_A=+—08 AEEERA
BANWARKISe6EEBL BT —=F+=
A=+ —HBARMKA08EETLLE - #BNL
13.0% ° Ed  R—FREBHZEHETHAR
#3387EBIL M- E—=F+=-A=+—H
ARBE295 6 E EITLLES - 1 N4914.6% : I —4F
MUA FHARRBIH 2 R REBEROARB 14788 E
LI E-=F+ -/ =+—HARK135.2H
BITLLE - 1 1499.3% ©



As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio, presented
as a percentage of total borrowings and bills payable divided by
total assets, was approximately 42.3% (2013: approximately
42.6%).

Working capital

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's net inventories, mainly
comprising raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
products, amounted to approximately RMB117.9 million,
representing an increase of 40.7% from approximately
RMB83.8 million as at 31 December 2013. The management
of the Group reviews and monitors inventory level on a regular
basis. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the average
inventory turnover days were 56.0 days (2013: 59.4 days).
Inventory turnover days were arrived at by dividing the mean
of the opening and ending balances of inventories for the same
period by cost of sales of the relevant period and multiplied by
365 days.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's trade receivables
amounted to approximately RMB328.3 million, representing an
increase of 23.5% from approximately RMB265.8 million as at
31 December 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the average turnover days of trade receivables were 130.5
days (2013: 133.6 days). The turnover days of trade receivables
were arrived at by dividing the mean of the opening and ending
balances of trade receivables for the period by sales for the
period and multiplied by 365 days. The turnover days of trade
receivables in 2014 had no material changes from that of last
year.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's trade payables amounted
to approximately RMB268.7 million, representing an increase
of 30.9% from approximately RMB205.2 million as at 31
December 2013. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
average turnover days of trade payables were 131.7 days (2013:
143.2 days). The turnover days of trade payables were arrived
at by dividing the mean of the opening and ending balances of
trade payables for the period by cost of sales for the period and
multiplied by 365 days. The decrease in the turnover days of
trade payables was mainly because the relief of capital pressure
allowed the Group to shorten the payment cycle for suppliers in
order to improve the relationship with them and strive for long-
lasting and favourable cooperation conditions.
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Capital expenditures and capital commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2014, capital expenditures
were approximately RMB52.8 million (2013: RMB80.8 million).
The Group’'s capital expenditures were primarily related to
an acquisition of land use rights, construction of production
facilities and the expenses for plant, machinery and equipment
for the business expansion of its Nanyang Cijan production
base. The Group has been financing its capital expenditures
primarily through cash generated from operations and bank
borrowings.

The Group will continue to expand its existing production
facilities and construct new plants as part of its plan to expand
production facilities. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had
capital commitments for acquisition of plant and machinery of
approximately RMB28.3 million (2013: RMB27.9 million).

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk on the variable interest rate of interest
earned from restricted bank balances and bank balances. The
Group’s borrowings are at fixed interest rates and therefore,
are not subject to fair value interest rate risk. No sensitivity
analysis has been prepared for restricted bank balances and
bank balances as the financial impact arising from the changes
in interest rates was minimal for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Foreign exchange risk

The businesses of the Group are located in the PRC, and its
major operating transactions are dominated in RMB. Most of
the assets and liabilities of the Group are dominated in RMB,
except for certain bank balances and other borrowings of the
Group, and certain professional payables dominated in HK and
US dollars primarily generated from listing of the Company.
Since RMB is not freely convertible, there exists the risk that
the PRC government may implement measures to interfere
with the exchange rates, which in turn may have impact on the
Group’s net asset value, profit and the dividends declared to
the extent that such dividends are subject to foreign exchange,
and the Group has no hedging measures against such exchange
risks. However, the management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had
1,539 employees (2013: 1,452 employees) with total
remuneration and welfare benefits expenses amounting to
approximately RMB87.3 million (2013: RMB62.4 million). The
Group's remuneration policy is primarily based on the job
responsibilities, work experience and length of services of each
employee and the prevailing market condition. The Group has
also provided internal and external trainings and courses to our
employees to encourage self-improvement and enhance their
professional technical skills. The remuneration of the Directors
is and will be determined based on their job duties and
responsibilities, experience and the prevailing market condition.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting held on 19 October 2011, a share
option scheme was approved and adopted (the “Scheme”).The
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, no share options were
granted under the Scheme by the Company. In addition, as of
31 December 2014, no share options under the Scheme were
outstanding.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
31 December 2014 in relation to acquisition and development
of the new business, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments and capital assets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
On 31 December 2014, the Company entered into an agreement
for acquiring 100% equity interest and a shareholder’s loan of
approximately HK$5,000,000 of a company from an individual
who is a relative of a substantial shareholder of the Company
at a consideration of HK$7,138,443. Upon the completion of
the acquisition, such company will become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. As at the Latest Practicable
Date, the acquisition has not been completed. Details of the
acquisition are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 31 December 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, save as above, the
Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Except for the investment in First Capital Automotive
Component Industry M&A Fund L.P. as set out in note 20 to
the Financial Statements of 2014 annual report, the Group did
not hold any significant investment as at 31 December 2014.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, (i) the Group's certain buildings and
production equipment with a net carrying amount of RMB198.7
million (2013: RMB75.1 million), (ii) the Group's leasehold land
with a carrying amount of RMB103.4 million (2013: RMB64.2
million) has been pledged to secure the Group’s bank loan
facilities.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's certain restricted bank
balances with a carrying amount of RMB84.3 million (2013:
RMB55.0 million) were pledged to secure the Group's bank
bills due within six months, which were issued to suppliers as a
pledge for the purchase of raw materials by the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wilson Sea (formerly known as Xi Chunying), aged
50, was appointed as the chairman of the Board and non-
executive Director of the Company on April 2011 and has
been re-designated as an executive Director on 1 January
2015. He is responsible for the general strategic planning and
business planning and co-ordination of the Group, as well
as for supervision of the enforcement and execution of the
management’s strategies. Mr. Wilson Sea is the director of
Wealth Max. He is also the director of 4 subsidiaries of the
Company. From 1997 to 2004, Mr. Sea worked in Minsheng
Securities (RAEFEHFBREFEAF]) as an assistant to president,
president and chairman, responsible for the investment banking
business, the business of research department, planning and
development of the company. From 2004 to 2007, he was
the chairman of the board of Kaifung City Lanwei Highway
Development Company Limited (BT HRE SR AKEES
[R/27]). Mr. Sea worked as the vice-chairman of the board of
Yubei (Xinxiang) Power Steering System Co., Ltd. from 2007 to
2011. He has also been appointed as the director of Nanyang
Pukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (R34 %AR A F) from
2008 to 2013 and as the director of First Capital Management
Co., Ltd from 2012 to 2013.

Mr. Sea obtained a bachelor degree in Economics from the
University of Henan (AR AE2) in 1986. He further obtained a
master degree and a doctoral degree in Economics from Fudan
University (fE B KX2) in 1992 and 1995 respectively. He was
appointed as a professor by University of Henan (AIEAZ) in
1995.
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Zhao Zhijun (#7&E), aged 40, was appointed as the chief
executive officer and an executive Director of the Company in
May 2011. Mr. Zhao Zhijun is the director of Plenty Venture.
He is also the director of 4 subsidiaries of the Company. He
joined the Group in 2005. Mr. Zhao has plenty of experience
in management in automobile shock absorber industry. He is
principally responsible for establishing development strategy,
making decision in respect of investment projects and the
general operation and management of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he worked for office of the
commissioners and general office of Zhengzhou (ZF}145E &
PWEFLLRAE) of the China Securities Regulatory Commission
(PEEAEEEBEEE) from 1999 to 2002. Mr. Zhao served
as a general manager of the sales department of Minsheng
Securities, Nanyang branch (R4AZB5BREEAFIEBLE
#F) from 2002 to 2005. Mr. Zhao graduated from Central South
University (FFFEAEZ2) with a master degree in Philosophy in
2004.

YAN Haiting (B8 =), aged 52,was appointed as a
non-executive Director with effect from 1 April 2014 and and
has been re-designated as an executive Director on 1 January
2015. He was responsible for the operation and development
of financial service business, the execution of overall strategies
and the daily operation management. Mr. Yan joined the Foreign
Investment Department of the People’s Bank of China (F1 8] A
RERTTHNER]) (the “PBC") in 1996 responsible for the financial
affairs of Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, and was transferred
to the International Department of PBC (A A RER1TRIER
A]) in 1999 responsible for financial affairs of America. From
2001 to 2002, he was seconded to HSBC United Kingdom to
learn corporate financial and asset management business. He
served as deputy director and later director in the International
Department of PBC from 2003 to 2005. From 2006 to 2010,
he was the chief representative of PBC of Europe, responsible
for the coordination and liaison with major countries in Europe,
policy study and submitting proposals to PBC and the State
Council of China regarding the formulation of and decisions in
economic and financial policies. From 2010 to 2013, he served
as the vice chairman and chief executive officer of Agricultural
Bank of China (UK) Limited, responsible for business and
market operations. Mr. Yan graduated from Henan University
majoring in English in 1988 and obtained a Master’'s Degree in
economics from Renmin University of China in 2001.
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Wang Wenbo (E X ), aged 40, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in May 2011. He is also
the deputy general manager of the Group and is in charge of
the research and development as well as technical and quality
control affairs of the Group. He joined the Group in 1995 and
served in various positions including deputy general technology
manager and deputy general sales manager. He has almost 20
years of management experience in the areas of technology,
sales and quality control in the automobile shock absorber
industry. He is one of the inventors of two patents with respect
to restoration damping valve of hydraulic shock absorber (& JE&
iR E21E RPEE ) and compression damping valve of hydraulic
shock absorber (& BRE IR ESBR 45 PHfE ) currently possessed
by the Group. Mr. Wang graduated from Huazhong Polytechnic
University (ZEHIE T AZ) (later renamed as Huazhong
University of Science and Technology (ZEEFRRHHKE)) with a
diploma in Mechanic Design and Test Technology in 1995.

Yang Weixia (532 E), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in May 2011. She is also the deputy
general manager of the Group and is principally in charge of the
Company’s purchase and human resource affairs. She joined
the Group in 2007 and served as the financial manager, human
resource manager, assistant to the general manager and deputy
general manager. Prior to joining the Group, she worked in
various positions in Minsheng Securities (R4 ZEA5ERETA
7)) including office manager of the sales department, officer
in charge of the service department, deputy general manager
of sales department and Yinzheng business department (835
FEFEER) from 1998 to 2007. Ms. Yang graduated from Henan
College of Finance and Economics (i Eg At & £8%) (later
renamed as Henan University of Finance and Economics (A
BH& %A E)) with a bachelor degree in Economics in 1998.
She was accredited as a medium level economist (41 4% 48 2 E)
by Ministry of Personnel of PRC in 2000.
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WANG Ping (£ ), aged 44, is the chief financial officer of
the Group and was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from April 2014. He has almost 20 years of experience
in corporate finance, audit, accounting and taxation. He joined
the Group in 2010 as senior vice president of Guang Da (China)
Automotive Components Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group, responsible for investment management. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Wang worked as the vice president and later a
director in EV Capital Pte Ltd. during the period between 2007
and 2010. From 2004 to 2007, he served as chief financial
officer for China Jishan Holdings Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the main board of Singapore Stock Exchange.
From September 1999 to August 2002, he served as a senior
accountant and subsequently a manager for audit department
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. Mr. Wang has been
an independent non-executive director of Chongyi Zhangyuan
Tungsten Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, since 2010 and has been an independent non-
executive director of China Hanking Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 3788) since 2011. He has also been serving as an
independent non-executive director of China Tianrui Group
Cement Company Limited (Stock Code: 1252) and Shenzhen
Fuanna Bedding and Furnishing Co., Ltd., since 2012 and
2013 respectively. Also, from 2014, Mr. Wang has been an
independent non-executive director of Jia Yao holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1626.HK) and Shihua Development Company
Limited (Stock Code: 0485.HK), which companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing
University in 1993 and obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration from Lingnan (University) College of Sun Yat-Sen
University in 2004. He is an associate member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Chu Kin Wang, Peleus ( %k # % ), aged 51, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
October 2011. Mr. Chu has over 20 years of experience in
corporate finance, audit, accounting and taxation. He has been
working as an executive director of Chinese People Holdings
Company Limited (FF R1ZE /% B R A 7)) (stock code: 681) since
2008 and is currently vice president of the company, and also
an independent non-executive director of Eyang Holdings (Group)
Co., Limited (FFZ1Z% (&£ E) BFR A 7)) (stock code: 117) since
2007, Huayu Expressway Group Limited (2 S SR EE B R A
7)) (stock code: 1823) since 2009, Flyke International Holdings
Ltd. (7R 72 BIBRIZE AR B BR A 7)) (stock code: 1998) since 2010,
EDS Wellness Holdings Limited (stock code: 8176) since 2012
and Telecom Service One Holdings Limited (B & BHZE &R B
R/ 7)) (stock code: 8145) since 2013. During the period from
September 2005 to March 2007, Mr. Chu was the executive
director of Mastermind Capital Limited (Z{Z 3% & 5 R A 7))
(stock code: 905), during the relevant period known as Haywood
Investments Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. From January 2008 to August 2010, he
was the independent non-executive director of Sustainable
Forest Holdings Limited ( 7k {& #k 2£ 1% §& & R A &) during the
relevant period known as Bright Prosperous Holdings Limited
(BRIZPRAER AT (stock code: 723) a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was also the company
secretary of Sun Century Group Limited (K5t 42 £ B AR A
a] ), during the relevant period know as Hong Long Holdings
Limited (%8 [% 42 i% & R A &) (stock code: 1383), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, responsible
for corporate finance, financial reporting and compliance and
company secretarial matters from 2008 to 2010. Mr. Chu
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Master's
Degree in Business Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chu
is also an associate member of both the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries.
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Li Zhigiang (Z&38), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in October
2011. He has been the legal advisor of the General Office of the
CPC Central Military Commission since 1994 and an executive
director and the president of Shougang Holdings Limited (& 3
R AR A F]) since 2004. In 2006, he was a director of Sino
Life Insurance Co., Ltd. (FE A& ASRERHDBRAF]) and
vice chairman in 2008, and chairman of China International
Cultural Media Co., Ltd.(FRBIBIR bR EEA R A 7)) since
2006. He was also appointed as the chairman and secretary to
the Communist Party Committee of Shougang Yili Steel Co.,
Ltd. (ZMFELEME AR AT in 2010. Mr. Li graduated from
Euromed Marseille Ecole de Management with a doctor of
Management and is currently the academician of the World
Academy of Productivity (152 4 & HRIEERR).

Zhang Jinhua (3R %), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in October
2011. Mr. Zhang has over 25 years of experience in automobile
industry. He is currently the head of secretary (#Z &) to
Society of Automotive Engineers of China (RS Ti2&2 <)
and has been serving as the deputy head of secretary (gf=E
&) and later the head of secretary to Society of Automotive
Engineers of China and the head of secretary to China
Automotive Industry Technology Progress Rewarding Fund
(FPERE T ERBHHE P EE) A £ E) since 2009. From 1988 to
2009, Mr. Zhang served as an assistant to the head, deputy
head (8|Frf) and head (FTf) and deputy president (83 F) to
the president assistant centre (£ {EBHFEH ) of the Automotive
Technology Information Institute ((SERITIEHRATITET) of China
Automotive Technology & Research Center (FfE/SE T 55
F0y). Mr. Zhang graduated from the Jilin Industrial University (&
I EKEZ) (later renamed as Jilin University (F#AZ2)) with a
bachelor degree in Automotive Application in 1988.

W 5258 R-E——F+ARZEAERA
BB FRITESE - WA - NWNEFEEEPH
RREZRNEEEERN AT TMFERE
BHZERARMITESRES - FR_TTRF
HEFRREBAZRBENERARNESTRN -
ZEN\FHEREER  R_TTRFRETEE
BX X RERERARESR RN _F—
TFERZEREMFRNEARAREEREE
RER - FRAERZEFEDEREESE L
R RAEE NS RR L

REE 505 R ——F T ABZEAAR
ABMIFMITES - REAHABR _THFRE
TEER RARPRAIEIRSEWER A
—TENFEARECTRABETIREEGNE
k WERRTBETEIXMESEDES S
MER - —NWN\NFEZZBTNF - RAEEERE
h BT BRI I 0 B T T R B A ST
WATRBIE - BIFfREATR - AR TEREF O
BIEE - REAR NN\ N\FEEREMIERKR
B(RABR/EMNAR) RIS IEERS LS -



Shi Hongmei (3 %24§), aged 45, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 April
2014. From 1991 to 1999, Ms. Shi worked at Beijing Building
Materials Factory (It R EME @A) as deputy plant
manager. From 1999 to 2005, she served as manager of the
Corporate Culture Department, BGO ING, China National
Petroleum Corporation (FEBIAMEERE G A BYIE AR TE
XAt EF). From 2004 to 2005, she seconded to and served as
deputy manager of the Department of Volunteer Work, the
Central Committee of the Communist Youth League of China
(LEE R REBEEITES). From 2005 to 2010, she served
as deputy office manager of the President’s Office, China
Development Bank. Ms. Shi graduated from Shanghai Tong
Ji University in 1991 with a Bachelor’'s Degree in thermal
engineering, and obtained a Master of Public Administration
Degree from Beijing University and China National School
of Administration in 2006 and a Master's Degree in applied
finance from Macquarie University in 2013. Ms. Shi is a Doctor
of financial engineering candidate in Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics. She has obtained the attorney at
law licence of the People’s Republic of China since 1999.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Hung Man Yuk, Dicson (3££/E), aged 39 has been the
Company Secretary and authorised representative of the Group
since 1 March 2012. Mr. Hung has extensive experience in
accounting, financial control and compliance. Mr. Hung obtained
a Master's Degree in finance from The Curtin University of
Technology in November 2002. He was admitted a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in July
2004 and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants in November 2006. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Hung has also
been appointed executive of several other listed companies,
including Qualified Accountant, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary of Zhongtian International Ltd. (Stock Code:
2379) from 2006 to 2007, Company Secretary of Come Sure
Group (Holdings) Ltd (Stock Code: 794) and China Tian Lun Gas
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code: 1600) since July 2010 and October
2010 respectively.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the 2014 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries include research,
development and manufacturing of automobile shock absorber
and suspension system for the OEM Market and Automobile
Aftermarket in the PRC.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal activities of the Company's subsidiaries
at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the 2014 Financial Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 78 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 5 June 2015 to Tuesday, 9 June 2015 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM,
during which period no transfer of shares can be registered.
In order to qualify for attending the AGM, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 4 June 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the
Group during the 2014 Financial Year are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements of this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the 2014 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 81 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB145.0 million (2013:
RMB150.5 million), comprising the share premium, the capital
reserve, the share-based reserve and the retained earnings of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
in addition to the retained earnings of the Company, the share
premium and capital reserves of the Company are also available
for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will
be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business immediately following the date on which any such
distribution is proposed to be paid.

For the surplus reserves, it comprising statutory surplus reserve
and discretionary surplus reserve, which are non-distributable
and the transfer to these reserves is determined according to
the relevant laws in the PRC and by the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the Article of Associate
of the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make up for previous years’ losses or convert into additional
capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary
surplus reserve can be used to expand the existing operations
of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had property, plant and
equipment at net book value of approximately RMB438.4
million (2013: RMB445.0 million). Details of the movements are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
During the 2014 Financial Year, the Group made charitable
and other donation totaling approximately RMB276,000 (2013:
RMB1,619,000).

CAPITALIZED INTERESTS

During the 2014 Financial Year, the Group did not capitalize
any interest expenses related to properties under construction
development (2013: RMB14.8 million).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results, assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in notes 27
to financial statements of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, sales to
the Group's five largest customers accounted for 60.0% and
60.0% of the total revenue of the Group, respectively, of which
sales to the largest customer accounted for 20.5% and 16.9%,
respectively.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 38.0%
and 38.6% of the total purchases of the Group, respectively, of
which purchases from the largest supplier accounted for 8.8%
and 8.3%, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company's issued shares) had any interests in
the Group's five largest customers or suppliers set out above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities during
the 2014 Financial Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles, or the law of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company is incorporated, under which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2014 Financial Year was the Company,
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the 2014 Financial Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wilson SEA (Chairman) (from 1 January 2015)
Mr. ZHAO Zhijun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YAN Haiting (from 1 January 2015)

Mr. WANG Wenbo

Ms. YANG Weixia

Mr. WANG Ping (from 1 April 2014)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. XIE Qingxi (until 22 May 2014)
Mr. FU Pengxu (until 22 May 2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. LI Zhigiang

Mr. ZHANG Jinhua

Ms. SHI Hongmei (from 1 April 2014)

According to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, if the number of Directors is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number of Directors nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office but eligible for re-election, and
every Director should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years at AGM. Accordingly, Mr. Wilson
Sea, Mr. Yan Haiting, Mr. Wang Ping and Mr. Li Zhigiang will
retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non- executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the above Directors are set out on pages 23 to 29 of
this annual report.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR’S
INFORMATION

As at 28 March 2014, (i) Mr. Wang Ping was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company; (ii) Mr. Yan Haiting
was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of
Strategy Committee of the Company; and (iii) Ms. Shi Hongmei
was appointed as an INED and a member of audit committee of
the Company. The aforesaid appointments were effective from
1 April 2014.

As at 23 May 2014, Mr. Fu Pengxu has tendered his resignation
as a non-executive Director and a member of the Strategy
Committee of the Company and Mr. Xie Qingxi has tendered his
resignation as a non-executive Director.

At the annual general meeting (“"AGM") convening on 9 June
2014, (i) Mr. Wilson Sea, a non-executive Director and Mr.
Li Zhigiang, an INED have retired and offered themselves
for re-election at the AGM according to the Article 84(1) of
the Articles of Association, (ii) Mr. Zhao Zhijun, Mr. Wang
Wenbo and Ms. Yang Weixia, executive Directors, Mr. Zhang
Jinhua and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, INEDs were re-elected
as Directors of the Company at the AGM according to the
recommendation of Nomination Committee of the Company,
and (iii) Mr. Yan Haiting, Ms. Shi Hongmei and Mr. Wang Ping
offered themselves for re-election according to the Article 83(3)
of the Articles of Association.

As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Wilson Sea and Mr. Yan Haiting
were re-designated from non-executive Directors to executive
Directors, with effect from 1 January 2015.

During the 2014 Financial Year, save as the aforementioned,
no other changes was made for directors and directors’
information
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
All of executive Directors had entered into a service contracts
with the Company. Details of the service contracts include: (1)
a term of directorship for three years with effect from the date
of reappointment or re-election; and (2) the contract shall be
terminated according to the terms of contract.

Each of independent non-executive directors had signed a
letter of appointment with the Company. Details of this letter of
appointment mainly include: (1) a term of directorship for three
years with effect from the date of reappointment or re-election;
and (2) the contracts shall be terminated according to the terms
of each contract.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the 2014
Financial Year is set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance, to which the Company,
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
throughout the 2014 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an
interest in a business which causes or may cause any
significant competition with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Wealth Max Holdings Limited, Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Zhao
Zhijun, Mr. Wang Wenbo and Ms. Yang Weixia (collectively, the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 19 October 2011 (the "Deed of Non-competition”)
pursuant to which each of the Covenantors jointly and severally,
irrevocably, undertakes with the Company that each of the
Covenantors shall, and shall procure that their associates shall,
among others, not directly or indirectly engage, participate
or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business in competition with or
likely to be in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group or be in competition with the Group in any business
activities which the Group may undertake in the future save
for the holding of not more than 5% shareholding interests
(individually or any of the Covenantors with their associates
collectively) in any company listed on the stock exchange or any
other stock exchange. Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Controlling shareholders and
substantial shareholders — Deed of non-competition” of the
Prospectus.

In order to ensure the Covenantors have complied with the
Deed of Non-competition, the following actions have been
taken:

(i)  the Company has required each of the Covenantors to
give confirmation to the Company on an annual basis as
to whether he or she or it has complied with the Deed of
Non-competition and the Company has received annual
confirmations from each of the Covenantors that he/she/
it has complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-
competition;

(i) the independent non-executive directors of the Company
has reviewed on an annual basis on the compliance with
the Deed of Non-competition by the covenantors and the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
has reviewed and understood that the covenantors have
complied with the Deed of Non-competition; and
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(i) the Company has enquired each of the Covenantors,
from time to time, on whether he/she/it has engaged in
any business which competes or might compete with
the business of the Group; and enquiries have been
made with each of the Covenantors before publication
of the Company’s interim reports and annual reports
and the Company has gained an understanding from the
Covenantors that each of the Covenantors has not engaged
in any business which competed or might compete with
the business of the Group.

Having considered the actions taken by the Company as
mentioned above, the board of directors of the Company is of
the view that the Covenantors have complied with the Deed of
Non-competition for the year ended 31 December 2014 and no
matters is required to bring to the attention to the public.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the
Company passed on 19 October 2011, the Company adopted
the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions
therein. The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the Listing Date.

A. Summary of the Share Option Scheme
1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the
Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below)
have made or may make to the business development
of the Group.

2. Eligible Participants

The Board may at its discretion offer options to any
executive, non-executive or INED; any employee of the
Group and any customer, supplier, agent, business or
joint venture partner, consultant, distributor, promotor,
service provider, adviser or contractor of any member
of the Group. The above-mentioned persons are
collectively referred to as “Eligible Participants” and
each an “Eligible Participant”.
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3. Maximum number of Shares 3. REKRHGEE

As at the date of the annual report, the total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes was 32,000,000 Shares,
representing 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
Options may not be granted under any schemes of the
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this
will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company,
no option may be granted to any Eligible Participants
which if exercised in full would result in the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options already granted or to
be granted to such Eligible Participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share option) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such new grant exceeding 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of such new grant.

Time of exercise of options and duration of

Share Option Scheme

(a) Time of exercise of options
An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during the period to be notified by the Board to the
grantee save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

Unless the Board otherwise determined, a grantee
is not required to achieve any performance target
before any options granted can be exercised.

(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be
10 years from the Listing Date.
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6. Subscription price and payment on grant
(a) Subscription price
The Subscription price for the Shares under
the Share Option Scheme shall be the price
determined by the Board and notified to the
Eligible Participant which shall not be less than the
highest of:

() the nominal value of a Share;

(i) the closing price of each Share as stated on
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant of the option; and

(i) the average closing price of each Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheet for the five consecutive trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option.

(b) Payment on grant
Eligible Participants are required to pay a
consideration of HK$1.0 for the acceptance of an
option granted to them.

7. Termination of the Share Option Scheme
The Company may by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any time terminate
the Share Option Scheme. Options granted prior to
such termination but not yet exercised at the time of
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

B. Options granted by the Company
As at date of this annual report, no option has been granted
or agreed to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise required to
notify the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares
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Number of issued Shares
held and nature of interest

FREERITROBEREENE
Corporate Approximate
Personal Interests  percentage of
Interests (interests of issued
(beneficial a controlled share capital
Name of Directors MR owner) corporation) of the Company
AR R EARAT
B AR (R — ERITRAMN
(BREBAN) DEHRER) BHEDH
Wilson Sea’ Wilson Sea!

(formerly known as Xi Chunying) (RIFEE AL - 92,178,000 24.00%
Zhao Zhijun? R - 16,800,000 4.38%
Wang Wenbo? EDQE 1,200,000 - 0.31%
Yang Weixia* BEE 960,000 - 0.25%
Notes: Biex -

1. These Shares are held by Wealth Max. Mr. Wilson Sea is the
sole beneficial owner of Wealth Max and hence is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Wealth Max under the SFO.

2. These Shares are held by Plenty Venture. Mr. Zhao Zhijun (#5E) is
the sole beneficial owner of Plenty Venture and hence is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by Plenty Venture under the SFO.

3. These Shares are held by Mr. Wang Wenbo (F30) directly.

4. These Shares are held by Ms. Yang Weixia (155 85) directly.

1.

ZERAD B Wealth Maxd548 © Wilson Sea%t &4
Wealth Max#IHE—E R A - BIREE S L
E1EHIEER Wealth MaxiH AR AR P HEE
TS o

HZERMBERRESE - BEELERRRE—E
BEAA - BIREES MR GHREREIRRS
BHmERN P EERES -
ZEBRMATORELERSH -

ZERMBBEELLERSE -



Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company, had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise required to notify to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the financial year ended 31 December 2014
were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of Shares in the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long Positions in Shares

PEEREBEREERERAF a1
—EB-MEFR

B EXEEEN  RZT—MFEF+ A =+—
B BMEEFRARATRABRARAHEMS
AR EE (B & R E A LB IRHIEXVER) f ik
0 HERD REST - BERBEESFRBAEEK
BIE3B216RER TR ERNERMATRE - SRR
ARAE ST BIZR AN & AN X A B Bt 52 P ) A ] A 2 O
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E‘ o

RZF—ME+-A=1+—8 LPRFEEAE
Bl EEAESFARESENEBIRKET
LERTFEBARNR RO MERHERN - KE
TMEITEELEERN - ARF] - HERARH
HAEMM B A RS LR ZEE B ESA
RAEREMEABRES UL FEF -

FTERREHMATRBROREBRRSG
MESER AR

REZ—ME+-—A=+—H  ATAL(EEK
AR EZITHABRRIN RIS AR AR
- EARERES M B EPIE336IERERT
FEMERMATREHNERIAR

REROHNER

Number of issued Shares
held and nature of interest
B RITROEE
RERME

Approximate

Personal percentage of

Interests issued share

(beneficial capital of

Name of shareholders BEER HHE owner) the Company

LER NG|

B AR 2ETRAN

(BREBAN) BHREDL

Wealth Max! Wealth Max’ 92,178,000 24.00%

Wang Lily? Wang Lily? 92,178,000 24.00%
Notes: iz

1. Wealth Max is wholly beneficially owned by Mr. Wilson Sea.

2. Ms. Wang Lily is the spouse of Mr. Wilson Sea. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Wang Lily is deemed to be interested in all shares in which Mr.
Wilson Sea is interested and/or deemed to be interested.

1. Wealth MaxfWilson Seaft £ 2 EE A ©

2. Wang LilyZ £ &Wilson SeaZt &KL - RIEFE
FLHE G - Wang LilyZ 318 AR Wilson
Seaft ¥ A K,/ SAR VEHEA B0 & 202 AP
B -
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2014, no
other person had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 33 to the financial
statements also constitute continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules.

Save the acquisition of equity interest of a related party and
Shareholder’s Loans (as detailed in Note 38 to the Financial
Statements) disclosed in the announcement of the Group
dated 31 December 2014, during the 2014 Financial Year, the
Group had no connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions that were not exempted under Rules 14A.31 and
14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holdings of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
the Company had maintained sufficient public float that the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands
of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group had
1,539 employees (2013: 1,452 employees) with total
remuneration and welfare benefits expenses amounted to
approximately RMB81.8 million (2013: RMB62.4 million). The
Group’s remuneration policy is primarily based on the job
responsibilities, work performance and years of services of
each employee and the current market conditions. The Group
also provided internal and external trainings and courses to our
employees to encourage self-improvement and to enhance their
technical skills. The determination of the remuneration to the
Directors will be based on their job duties and responsibilities,
experience and current market condition.

BEXHEEN  BENEETIARRITRAR
il RZE—ME+ZA=+—H ' #EEM
ATRBROEARBEERN T - HERIEES
KB IGPIE3361ERER T FENELMATCE
HREmsRA

RERXS
WA BRERM T MEA TR S - KL
AR AT SR MR SR ARIE R 5 o

BASEER -_ZT—NFE+-A=+—B2MmHK
RN T B MR E R (FF R B HRA M 5E38)
Sh R-Z—MMBRFEAR - AEEHEIE L
TR BIE14A 3RS 14A B3GR HEIER 5
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BIF R RS EH R
EEY FNEARABRRARFEBRR A ZHE
IR H e R -

ZEABERE
BERARESHNARERRRESAA - B
FIBEAFRANREBERIITAE  AQF—&
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BRBIE25% AN T B BITHRG -
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EHMBREBEFEEZ BB REBE  £BEBTm
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Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code provision B.1.5,
the remuneration of the member of the senior management by
the remuneration band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is
set out below:

PEEREBEREERERAF 43
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BIEREEIRTRIEB.BEEKX - BREEREK
BEZE_Z-—MF+ - A=+—HI-FE&RHM
MRIBI S 2 F ST

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band (RMB) AR (ARY) A"
Nil to 500,000 T ZE500,0007T 6
500,001 to 1,000,000 500,0017C%1,000,0007T 2
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,0017C%1,500,0007TC 2

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the employer and employee are required to
make contributions of 5% of the employees’ relevant income
to the scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions made to the scheme are vested
immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC participate in
the retirement schemes operated by the local authorities. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their salaries to these schemes to finance the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group in respect to these schemes is the
required contributions under the schemes.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s total
contributions to the retirement schemes charged in the income
statement amounted to approximately RMB8.4 million (2013:
approximately RMB7.9 million). Details of the Group's pension
scheme and the basis of calculation are set out in note 34 to
the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than employment with employees of the Company, no
contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed with any individual, company or
body corporate during the year.

EBIRETE
AREBRBEEBSBHERESTEIEN AZES
ERGHEENTEERNTEESRT —IHR
FERESTE([RFESTE]) - 8FESTEA
—IHABIXTATENTEETERAKGTE - R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report from pages 47 to 61 of this
annual report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the 2014 Financial Year have been
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be
proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

REVIEW BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited financial statements have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Company, which comprises four INEDs
namely Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, Mr. Li Zhigiang, Mr. Zhang
Jinhua and Ms Shi Hengmei. Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

On behalf of the Board
Chairman
Wilson SEA

27 March 2015
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Environment, Society and Governance Report

RIS - HEREREE

The Company has always placed importance to its cooperation
with all of its stakeholders, including shareholders and
investors, staff, customers, suppliers and business partners,
the media, government and regulators, the environment and
the community. Furthermore, the Company maintains operation
compliance, sincere cooperation, cultural integration, employee
care, as well as charity and public welfare, and, as a corporate
citizen, continuously expands the breadth and depth of social
responsibility fulfillment to achieve a sustainable development.

The Company endeavors to develop itself into a modern
resource-saving and environmental-friendly enterprise to
achieve harmony among enterprise, society and the nature by
its circular economy philosophy, commitment to an ongoing
improvement and its strengthened efforts in repair, recycling
and integrated utilization of materials and in energy-saving and
cost-reducing.

A. QUALITY OF WORK ENVIRONMENT
A1 Work Environment
The Company has a team of dedicated and competent
workforce to support its business expansion strategies
and to sustain its development.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had a total of
1,539 employees. As the Company principally operates
its business in the mainland China, the number of
employees in China is about 1,517, representing
approximately 98.5% of total employees, and the
remaining 1.5% of employees, being 22 employees,
are almost the relevant research and development
personnel mainly distributed in Italy.

31 December

ARR—BEEREMERNERTAE  ETE
EERREREE BT  BP  HEBEEBS
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BEQAKLE MERE - LR - BIEE
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o
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MN-ZE—NE+-"A=+—H  ARQF
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31 December

2014 2013 Increase

—E-MF —T=F
Location e +=A=+-8B +-A=+—H 181
China s 1,517A 1,433 A 84 A
Italy FEARH 22N 19A 3A
Total &5 1,539 A 1,452 A 79N
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In 2014, the number of our employees in China enjoyed
an increase of 84 or 5.9% due to our further expansion
of production scale, and such increased employees
are mainly the professional production technicians;
meanwhile, the number of our overseas employees
experienced an increase of 3 or 15.8% in 2014 due to
our increased efforts in development and research and
operations in Italy.

Adhering to the people-oriented concept, the Company
is committed to providing a healthy and safe work
environment for all staff. The Company also encourages
its staff to exert their creativity and potential and to
align personal development with enterprise growth, so
as to promote mutual development between the staff
and the enterprise.

In order to attract, incentivize and retain the
talented employees, we will constantly review our
compensation and benefits programmes to ensure
that they are both competitive with the external
market and internally equitable among colleagues.
Apart from annual reviews, special reviews will also
be conducted to align pay packages of well-performing
employees with prevailing market conditions, especially
under volatile and severe labour markets. “Pay for
performance” is the key principle adopted to link
rewards to the achievement of key performance
indicators to motivate employees to work towards
meeting company goals and objectives.

To increase employees’ engagement, wellness and
sense of belonging with the Company, different social,
recreational and health-related activities are arranged
by the Company annually, for example, birthday parties
organized on a monthly basis to give gifts for the staff,
as well as birthday blessings by the general manager
published in the factory’s journal. We also care about
the family members of employees and their children’s
growth, for example, grants provided for their
children’s enrollment by colleges and for their entrance
of university.
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A2

In 2014, the Company was affected by the volatile
and competitive labour markets, with staff turnover
rate of 8%. Most of the resigned employees were
professional production technicians. Programmes
such as expanding recruitment channels, reviewing
remuneration and engagement conditions, etc., were
adopted by the Company to recruit and retain talents.

The Group promotes fairness and justice, respect to
employees, equal opportunities for employment and
upholds a high standard of employee treatment.

Health and Safety

The Company has set up a complete Environmental
and Occupational Safety Management System and an
environmental department of safety technology with
professionals, and has developed, implemented and
supervised health and safety management system
and operation specification, so as to institutionalize
health and safety management, standardize operating
procedures and clarify responsibilities, thereby
safeguarding the occupational health and safety of the
Company'’s staff.

In August 2014, the Company passed the verification
and obtained GB/T24001-2004/I1SO14001:2004
Environment Management System Certificate ((R3E%E
FBRE X R ZE) and GB/T28001-2011/OHSAS18001 :
2007 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System Certificate (BEERLE2ERBARERE)
from Beijing Zhong Da Hua Yuan Certification Centre (it
R RERRFPL.

In 2014, the Company realized the goal of zero
pollution and zero major safety accident during the
production; the Company recorded five minor injury
accidents, in which three persons were slightly injuried,
zero serious injury accident and zero fatality accident
(2013: recorded eight minor injury accidents, in which
five persons were slightly injuried, zero serious injury
accident and zero fatality accident). The rates of safety
education training, attendance with special operation
certificate, and accident reporting and dealing for 2014
have all reached 100%, and the implementation rate of
safety instructions and the rectification rate of accident
risks have reached 100%.

A2
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In 2014, the Company completed a total of 7 trainings
regarding environmental and occupational safety for
130 trainees each. We would continually enhance
staff's safety awareness and ensure implementation
of the work safety regulations and technical operation
instructions through a combination of internal and
external health and safety education and promotion.

The Group has developed and implemented the Safety
Inspection System, the Accident Risk Investigation
and Rectification System, and the Major Hazards
Monitoring System to timely detect and effectively
rectify all kinds of safety risks. In 2014, the Company
detected 78 safety risks of various categories, 76 of
which were rectified, and the rectification rate reached
approximately 97%.

In 2014, the Company conducted investigation on
harmful toxic post and established files for these posts’
employees, and carried out occupational health check
for 180 staff in batches, and no occupational disease
case was found;

In 2014, the Company took various measures
to improve the environment and strengthen the
occupational health and safety, for instance, installing
ventilation devices in welding areas of the general
assembly workshop to take away smoke and dust
produced during processing; checking the high-
noise equipment in general assembly workshop and
installing noise reduction devices; transforming the
wire of electrophoresis paints in No. 2 general assembly
workshop and sealing the manufacturing process;
installing wind supplying devices in production areas
of the coating workshop, by means of which the
cool air could be conveyed to every operating area to
ensure the staffs working in a safe, comfortable work
environment.
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In order to verify the environmental performance
of the Company, in 2014, the Company invited the
Environmental Protection Bureau (3R &), Quality
and Technology Supervision Bureau (BlTESEF),
Environmental Monitoring Center (BB3ZE538|4 () of
Xichuan County to conduct environmental monitoring
on the emissions of waste water, waste gases
and noise, and all the monitoring results met the
national standards. The Company has not received
complaints from relevant parties or punishments from
environmental protection department at all levels for
years.

The Company has developed strict targets for work
safety responsibility assessment, and has concluded
the Statement of Responsibilities for Safety Target,
which would be linked to the performance appraisals
of the plants, the departments and the staff, as well as
remunerations, promotions, etc.

In conclusion, it can be confirmed that the
environmental and occupational health and safety
system of the Company continues to operate in an
effective manner currently.

Development & Training

In order to improve the overall quality of all staff and
professional technical standard, the Company has
made and implemented Training and Management
System and established a series of training system
and procedures including introduction training, career
technical training and quality training.

A3
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The Company is focused on creating a good
circumstance for training and studying with its internal
training work under the charge of the Human Resource
Department. This Department was responsible for
carrying out training targeted for staff, in particular, the
new staffs who would take up their jobs after receiving
proper training and passing requisite tests. The
workshop staff mainly study production technology,
quality system, equipment operation techniques;
and for senior management, special expertise, and
statutory eligible members who need to attend external
training, the Company should actively coordinate and
arrange external training. The Company has established
a knowledge management system in order to
continuously summarize methods for staff to acquire
and learn knowledge, master more extensive and in-
depth knowledge through customers, business, self-
learning, team-learning and network etc., communicate
and share the training findings.

An aggregate statistics of the trainings of the Company
for 2014 and 2013 is set out below:

REIELERIFNEIINEBRY -
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The Company has strictly complied with the Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Work Safety.
The Production Department of the Company has
assigned dedicated safety officers to take charge of
safety affairs, inspect the safety operating condition of
the Company at any time and engage relevant health
department to inspect whether the results conform to
relevant requirements.

Total

number of
persons Total
Times of attending training
training trainings hours

ikl
Year FE EINRE BAE #B3E )| 05
2013 —EF—=F 95 3,266 4,899
2014 —T-F 94 2,995 4,493

A4 Labor Standards TR
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In order to improve the basic quality of the Company's
staff, further allocate human resources reasonably
and adapt to the need of corporate development,
the Company formulated Recruitment Management
System and Management Regulations on External
Recruitment of Staff. In the Regulations, there is a
specific requirement stated that the external staff must
be over 18 years old, healthy and without disabilities,
well-behaved and without illegal records, and
without any disputes or engagements with any other
employers.

The Company implemented full-crew contract system
by which all staff needed to sign fixed term labor
contract under the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China and organize a union comprising of staff
representatives to protect staff’s rights and interests.
For the promotion and development of the staff, the
Company implemented three-prolonged management
of administrative management, engineering technology
and operation service, and accordingly set different
ranks. The staff of the Company can realize promotion
through leader appointment, position recruitment and
annual appraisal. The Company provided a boarder
development space for the staff to prove their talents
and realize personal value.

The Company also give priority to people relocated
from the reservoir area of Xichuan and demobilized
soldiers during recruitment, in order to fulfill its
responsibilities for keeping social stability and helping
poverty alleviation of the impoverished peasants in
local areas.

B ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

With the aim of building a garden-like factory, the Company
is dedicated to create an environmental friendly enterprise.
The Company strives to build a model enterprise in
energy saving and emission reduction by insisting on the
development model of circular economy, comprehensive
utilization and clean production, and reduce the negative
impact of the production activities on the environment
through the way of circular utilization and technology
upgrading.

B

PEEREBEREERERAF 51
—EB-MEFR

RTIRFBARNBINEARARE  E—F
EREEANER  HEECEBERNT
B REEFTZ TCREERHE)R(ER
BTHNBAREEERE) - METRHIE

ko THESMEREE THEFMI18ER -
BRERERK RmITEREBEET
% IE@EEHEI?@%}\ 5 i BB A
SHAE

REIERZEART - 288 THER(F
EARENMBELEZ)ERETEETE
HiR BB AR - WAHE TR E TREA
KT E  RIERIi#ER HEINE
FBRETITRER - LRI B
ERB =T  HERE T RN
F - RRIEIAABBES TS - EWAL
L FEERESBEABRSH -
REIRBEIRDHERAE - BREAE
BERHTEMFNEEZME -

REEERFEGMT - ERBEM)IE
EBRMNEREA  AEHNHEERE
REMERNZRREMHERNBE -

RIBRE

ARRUERCEEIRABE  BRIEER
R - REIRFEBLE - 4RE IR
BREEMBEREDN - BHEREEREER
WA BARQEFA - BIUTAROHTR -
PR AEEEBEH IR N FE



2 China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited
5 Annual Report 2014

Environment, Society and Governance Report
RE - HERERERE

Over the years, the Company has adhered to the
development by science and technology innovation, and
conducted study for industrial equipment and production
techniques, to reduce the consumption of the utilities and
raw materials and protect the environment. In order to
reduce the machining allowance, shorten the process and
improve the efficiency of environmental protection, the
Company actively carries out the innovation, tuning and
transform of the technology.

In 2014, the Company realized the improvement of
the welding fume extracting system and water-cycling
system. The welding fume extraction system reduced
the damage from fume to the health of staff during the
welding process, and the improvement to the water-cycling
system realized the circular utilization of waste water from
production, which achieved water saving of up to 1120 tons
per annum. The Company was authorized 12 patents by
the state in 2014, most of them related to environmental
protection, material and energy consuming reduction.

B1 Emissions

Adhering to the tenet of “safety production, clean
production and environment — friendly production”,
the Company is committed to the maintenance of a
healthy and safe working environment. The Company
complies with the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’'s Republic of China in respect of
the environment, and assesses periodically on the
conformity with environmental laws and regulations. As
for the environmental impact from production process,
the Company complies strictly with relevant laws and
regulations, and conduct inspecting and monitoring on
a regular basis. According to the inspection results, the
three wastes, noise and power dust etc. generated
from production process of the Company is in
conformity with laws and regulations.
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In 2014, the Company has formulated five
environmental objectives. Specifically, the emission
shall reach Grade Il of the Comprehensive Emission
Standard of Air Pollutants (GB16297-1996); the
wastewater discharge shall reach Grade |l of
the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB8973-1996); and the noise emission shall reach
Grade |l (daytime<60DdB, night<50dB) of the Emission
Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at Boundary
(TEPEHAREREYBIZE) (to be confirmed)
(GB12348-2008); and all of which shall conform
with the standard requirements in inspections by
government departments.

In February 2014, the Company was awarded the
Certificate of “Exemplary Unit for Innovation on
Energy-saving & Emission Reducing Technology in
Henan Province" (7] & & 8 3 FE B £ 81 58 /= & 1
2£) by the Science and Technology Department of
Henan Province (i % £H%EE), Development and
Reform Commission (3$4%), Department of Industry
and Information Technology Department (T {ZE2),
Department of Environmental Protection (32{REZ) and
Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
({E#EE) for its remarkable performance in “carrying
out clean production, developing circular economy,
promoting energy-saving and emission reduction
work by technology innovation, and enhancing its
comprehensive ability in energy saving and emission
reduction. And it served as an technical example
for the peers and industrial enterprises across the
province, and made valuable contribution in realizing
energy saving and emission reduction targets of this
province".

Usage of Resource

The company placed emphasis on recycling economy
and saving resources in production and operation. The
water, electricity, gas and other resources are used
efficiently in the process of production, and the worn-
out equipment and materials have been repaired and
recycled. Waste and rubbish from the process of
production have been classified and taken full use to
maximize the benefits of resources.
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The company implemented budget management and
tracking monitor, set goals and obligations for Energy
Department and Production Department, issued
indicators of KPI performance and set up measuring
and reporting system for analysis and evaluation
according to the company’s energy management
measures on the basis of the control policy of
scientific management, provision on time, fair use and
elimination of waste.

Basic information of the consumption of water and
electricity of the Company in 2013 and 2014 are as
follows:

REBERRIGREREEMRE  KENBE
B ERME  SRER O ERREE
B ARRDRAEEE  RHE
7 WENEL - EEFETE B REME
B TEERKP)EZIER  BUE
MIREDE - BIeOME -

N E—=ZN T —NFEKEERE
RERERZT

Proportion of

consumption

of water and
electricity in  Consumption
administration of water and
and electricity per

Number of management unit in the

product in revenue(%) production

(10 thousand) (Note) (RMB)

THRER BNEM

EmEEHE SHFEKE EEHEKE

Year FE (BE) 1AWA(%) () (ARM )
2013 —T—=F 594 0.1 1.46
2014 —ET—mF 731 0.14 1.28

Note: Proportion of consumption of water and electricity in
administration and management in revenue increased in
2014 as compared with that in 2013, which was mainly due
to the increased demand for water and electricity in office
after the new production base was put into operation, and
the increased consumption of water and electricity resulted
from the commencement of the Company’s restaurant
facility for improving the employees’ dinning environment.

In order to improve the protection of resources and
the reduction of energy consumption, the Company
creates a rich cultural atmosphere of corporate quality
and improves the level of employees’ participation by
holding speech contest, corporate seminar, setting up
rationalization proposal award fund and other daily ways
for collecting rationalization proposals from employees
to enhance the efficiency of resource utilization and
energy saving and consumption reduction of the whole
Company.
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B3 Environment and Natural Resources

The Company strictly complied with The Environmental
Protection Law of the PRC, and also conducts
evaluation on the conformity of the laws and
regulations of environment regularly. In respect of
the environmental influence during the process of
production, the Company strictly complied with the
relevant laws and regulations and conducted inspection
and supervision regularly. The Company’s three
wastes, noise and dust in the process of production
were tested and met the requirements of the laws and
regulations.

In respect of comprehensive utilization of the waste,
the Company adopted the way of collective storage
and unified treatment to avoid secondary spread and
resources waste. The Company recycled 100% of the
production waste in 2014.

We will continue to adhere to the development idea
of safety, harmony and green, and make unremitting
efforts to create a resource-saving and environmental-
friendly corporate.

C. OPERATING PRACTICES
C1 Supply Chain Management

The Company has developed and implemented
Procurement Execution Control Procedure and
Supplier Control Procedure for centralized purchasing,
storage and deployment management of the materials
required by the Company. Instant transmission and
sharing of information including purchase order, quality
information feedback and inventory inquiry have been
realized by an information management platform
comprising of ERP system, PTX service information
platform and Quality Assurance System structured
by the Company, which not only enhanced service
efficiency and the abilities of quick response to the
markets, but also guaranteed high quality products and
services from suppliers by reducing the procurement
cycle and procurement cost and improve service
efficiency.
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By the end of 2014, the Company had 91 supplier
teams (by the end of 2013: 92), all of them were
within China. More than half of the suppliers have
established a steady long term cooperation relationship
with us. We recognize that the status and role plays
of each supplier in the Company's value creation and
operation, which is our base to provide high quality
products and services. Under the concept of “value
co-creation and win-win cooperation”, the Company
actively collaborates with the suppliers to enhance the
competitiveness of the Company’s products.

We generally entered into purchase framework
agreements with our suppliers which set out our
annual purchase budget and we might give notice to
the suppliers or adjust according to our needs at a
particular time. To avoid any disruptions in production,
we maintained at least two suppliers for each of the
raw materials or components and carried out AB roles
supply to prevent monopoly of suppliers and ensure
timely delivery of the purchased materials.

We took into account factors such as the quality and
technology level of the suppliers, the purchase price,
our production cost and the historical dealings with the
suppliers in selecting our suppliers. We also conducted
monthly and annual evaluation of our suppliers and
graded and eliminated suppliers who failed to meet
our standards from our suppliers’ list. We adopted
purchase share allocation in varying proportions
pursuant to suppliers’ grades to ensure that the
production capacity and quality of the respective
suppliers could meet our Group’s needs for production
and future development. We provided suppliers with
active support and assistants and shared technologies
and knowledge for the continuous development of
suppliers.

We have adopted stringent measures in monitoring
the quality of the raw materials and components
supplied by our suppliers. Staff from our quality
control department will conduct a sample testing and
inspection on the raw materials and components upon
their delivery. If raw material or component is found to
be sub-standard, such raw material or component will
promptly be returned to the relevant suppler.
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Delivery of raw materials and components mostly take
place at our production facilities. Risk and ownership of
the raw materials and components are transferred to us
upon delivery.

Due to long term cooperation relationships and
annually increasing purchase amount and quality,
our main suppliers supply high quality products to us
at competitive prices, achieving a win-win situation
and further maintaining the cost advantage of the
Company.

Product Responsibility

Our Company has attached great importance on
product quality and regarded it as its soul. We have
passed international quality system certifications such
as 1SO9001, QS9000, VDAB.1, ISO/TS16949, and have
formulated “Quality Manual”, “Quality Program File”,
“Quality Operation File”, “Quality Guidance Book”
and “Quality Control Regulations”. By implementing
a full range of quality control in production process,
we ensure that we will provide good quality products
and services to our customers. All products to be sold
to the customers must be inspected according to the
standard before they go out of the factory.

Products we supplied to original automobile
manufacturers must meet their requirements and a
quality warranty shall be simultaneously provided.
Our Company pays close attention on customers’
needs and their feedback, and accredits after-sales
service personnel at OEM clients’ factory to deal with
customer’s problems from their feedback on site.
In addition, quality control department has set up
customer service hotline to ensure the satisfaction of
our customers. We will response quickly and provide
technical services in a promptly manner if there are any
complaints about absorber during quality warranty.

In order to precisely grasp the trend of customers’
demand for quality, price and service which are market
factors, our Company adopted various methods such
as questionnaires, statistics of zero-kilometer PPM
value and customer information feedback (complaints)
in accordance with the standard requirement of ISO/
TS16949-2009 to conduct customer satisfaction survey.
After statistical analysis of feedback from customers,
we will take effective measures to enhance customer
satisfaction.

C2
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We have been dedicated to better and advance our
quality control system. We conduct regular internal
reviews for quality control system of production
process and finished goods inspection. Currently, we
adopt SPC, MSA, APQP, PPAP and FMEA program
and analysis during production process to avoid and
control defects in designing, production and quality
inspection. In 2014, RMB6.56 million was provided
for our products’ warranty, decreased by 27% when
compared to RMB8.98 million in 2013.

Anti-Corruption

Our company has sound staff honesty and self-
discipline requirements, supplier honesty requirements
and internal whistle-blowing policy. We also has tip-
off telephone and anti-corruption account to prevent
occurrence of cases of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or unethical behaviors through internal and
external prevention and control measures. An employee
who violates professional ethics and requirements
will be penalized seriously in accordance with the
provisions of the system. Employees can report to
inspection team of our Company as to rule-breaking
behaviors including various derelictions of duty,
misconduct, abuse of power for personal gain, taking
bribes, and possessing our Company's properties of
any employees of our Company by letter, fax, mail,
telephone and conversation. After investigation and
collection of evidence as well as verification and to
reach a conclusion by inspection team of our Company,
such employees will be punished accordingly. In
December 2014, our Company announced “Notice on
Prohibition of Demanding and Accepting Bribes during
Production and Operation (for example, Purchase)
Process (KFARNBEERBELELEBRETRE X
BERYANY )" and “Honesty Letter to Suppliers ( (it
FERIH BRI ANk ) )" to further regularize suppliers’
operation behaviors of our Company and strengthen
employees’ honesty and self-discipline, thereby
creating a good and orderly production and operation
environment as well as preventing occurrence of
corruption and enhancing honesty and self-discipline.
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D. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
D1 Investment in Community

Our Company takes building a harmonious enterprise
as its mission and attaches great importance on
harmonious relations with community where it located.
Our Company also actively participates in community
activities to realize needs of community where it
located and do practical and good things for community
residents.

In order to enhance communication with community
where it located and build a harmonious relationship,
our Company’s office will be responsible for receiving
and dealing with appeal of community residents, with
an aim of maintaining smooth communication and
active coordination with community where it located.
Through building a communication mechanism with
government as the leader and rural enterprises having
equal opportunities for communication, together
with support from county government, town, village
and community of Xichuan, we maintained our
communication channels open, thus playing a role
in coordinating the stable relationship between the
Company and community.

Our Company proactively drives the local economic
development and has made a great contribution to the
local social stability and economic prosperity where it
located. In 2014, Our Company has donated RMB0.276
million (2013: RMB1.619 million) for community
assistant project.

D2 Community Involvement and Community

Care

Our Company specially cares for lives of vulnerable
groups and the poor. On the eve of every year’'s Spring
Festival, our Company has provided aid goods for as
well as offered greetings and blessings to poor families
of community, to help them celebrate the holiday.

e |In May 2014, our Company visited Central Primary
School of Xipingtou (FAFFEEA L/ \E8) and made a
donation of money.
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In July 2014, our Company invested for villagers of
Chen Zhuang Cun (FR#AT) (where our Company
located and which experienced a drought) to dig
a deep water well, and built pipe network, having
solved villagers’ difficulties of drinking water.

In September 2014, our Company made donations
to 3 poor students who were villagers of
Laofengou, Shangji town and were admitted to
universities, made their college dreams come true.

In September 2014, in order to give children in
poor mountainous district a childhood with stories
and books, our Company sponsored an activity of
“Donate Books and Offer True Love (f8— 8 E£% -
BAi—FA E1E)", and made a donation of money to
Central Primary School in Jinzhuhe village, Madeng
town (5 EESES TR A A 2N &), helping it improve
the infrastructure.

In 2014, in order to solve residents’ employment
of the place where our Company located, our
Company gave priorities to 136 local villagers
under the same conditions of recruit in 2014.

In addition, in order to increase the residents’
income, our Company firstly arranged qualified
local enterprises and residents to contract
weeding of flowerbeds and maintenance of small
infrastructure works.

Looking forward, through mid — to-long-term planning
and implementation, we will continue to perfect social
responsibility working system, strengthen responsibility
governance and responsibility integration, and we will
sustainably enhance innovations to pursue economic,
social and environmental coexist.

“E-NFELA  AREMER
HENERZR  RAHERNEST
R —IR - WRREM  BRT
N RFOKREE -

“E-FEAA - AEALEHEE
EREN=%2Z LRENERRRT
Sitias) - EEhhifIE TREE -

“E-WFEAA RTHERLUE
BRNETF—EERENESF A8
BEOESF - KARRERTIB—EE
T OR-REBEERY ASEES
AR L N IRBFIR - BB R
R EEERNE

“T-MEE - BRTHRRRMAE
WERHORERE  —F—NF
REVERFHBEET - BERH
136 B EHATRINBERE -

BESN - BT B INFTE M R R Y MK
A REETEERE - NRERS
BT LEERFNERNE D
ENERAR  EBIAELERK
WA e

RERK B BBTRMREIFE
B BETEUHSRMEIIFER MR
BEERBEEERE  LWHFESCER
o BIEREE - g - RIEAOME
Hiz e



Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

The Board is committed to promoting good corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and
to enhance the Group's performance. The Group believes that
conducting its businesses in an open and responsible manner
and following good corporate governance practices serve its
long-term interests and those of its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with Corporate Governance Code
(the "Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules so as to enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company throughout the 2014 Financial Year
and up to the date of this annual report.

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Board reviews at least annually the
corporate governance practices of the Company to ensure its
continuous compliance with the Corporate Governance Code,
and make appropriate changes if considered necessary. During
the 2014 Financial Year, the Board has performed the corporate
governance duties set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

None of the Directors is aware of any information which would
reasonably indicate that the Company was not in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code during the 2014 Financial
Year and up to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The overall management of the business of the Group is
delegated to the Board. The Board is responsible for the
formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives
of the Group and ensuring that the interest of Shareholders
including those minority shareholders are protected. Daily
operations and administration of the Group are delegated to the
executive Directors and the management.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises a combination of executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors. As of the date of this annual report, the
composition and committees of the Board is as follows:

Exg

EFeHRBRNTES  FRTES BTN
TEFEK - RAFERSAH - EFGHAK
REZBEWMT

Committees

zaE
Audit Remuneration Nomination Strategic
Committee Committee Committee Committee

Directors &% EREEY FHEESE REEEE BREZESY
Executive Directors ${1TEE
Mr. Wilson SEA (Chairman) C C
Wilson SEAZE 4 (/&)
Mr. ZHAQ Zhijun (Chief Executive Officer) M M
HEE S A (7T AEEL)
Mr. YAN Haiting /8 =54 M
Mr. WANG Wenbo T3 4
Ms. YANG Weixia 15 &4+
Mr. WANG Ping ¥4
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUHHITEE
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus k{754 C M M
Mr. LI Zhigiang ZE7534 % 4 M M
Mr. ZHANG Jinhua SR3#EZE Sc 4 M C M M
Ms. SHI Hongmei £ =18+ M

Notes: Hidt :

C - chairman C_i}ﬁz

M — member M—pk &

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 23 to 29 of this
annual report and is updated on the website of the Company.

The Board believes that the composition of the executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the interests
of Shareholders and the Group. The non-executive Directors
provide the Group with diversified expertise and experience.
Their views and participation in Board and committee meetings
bring independent judgement and advice on issues relating
to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process, which in turn ensuring that the
interests of all shareholders are taken into account. One of
the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus possesses the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications or related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Group provides briefings and other trainings to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group,
together with its legal counsel, continuously update Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices.

During the year, the Company organised a formal training
session for the Directors and conducted by its Hong Kong
legal advisers. The training session covered topics including
the Corporate Governance Code, the disclosure of inside
information and establishment of an internal control system. All
Directors attended the training session.

The Board Meetings
The Board meets at least twice a year and additional meetings
will be convened when deemed necessary by Board.

The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year has been
informed to each Director. Notices of Board meetings will be
served to all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting.
Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by
the Company Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All
the Directors are given the opportunity to include any matters
which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the Board
meetings.

Agenda and relevant documents of Board meetings with
adequate background information and supporting analysis
are made available to the Directors at least 3 days before
the intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are
given separate and independent access to the Company’s
senior management for further information and enquiries.
The Company Secretary and senior management attends all
the meetings of the Board and Board committees to advise
on corporate governance, statutory compliance and financial
matters.
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Any material matters that would have conflict of interest
between the directors/substantial shareholders and the
Company will be dealt with at the Board meeting. Pursuant to
the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted
in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of any
contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in
which he or any of his associates (including any person who
would be deemed to be an "associate” of the Directors under
the Listing Rules) has any material interest, except under certain
special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such
requirement at each Board meeting and their responsibilities
in making proper declaration of interest at the Board meeting
where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary and key officers of the Company in
relation to the board procedures. Draft minutes of Board/Board
committee meetings shall record in sufficient details of the
matters considered by the participants of such meetings and
decisions reached. and then be forwarded to the participants
for comments within a reasonable time after the meetings. The
final versions of minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary, which
are open for inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow the Directors to fulfill their duties
properly. Directors may seek independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense, if necessary, with the approval of
the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal
actions which may be taken against Directors and management
in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of the Directors at the meetings of the
Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Strategy Committee and the
general meetings during the 2014 Financial Year are set out in
the following table:
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ERNHERLRE

TREINR - Z-NFMBREFEHREEHEE
=2 BRZEY® FWZEw REZEg.
BRELZESERMBRAGHHFERCE

Meetings attended/Meetings held

LEEENY ERRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination Strategy General
Board Committee Committee  Committee = Committee meeting
EZg BhZa% ¥MzEE REEZEE BRZEE REAE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Wilson SEA (Chairman) Wilson SEASE 4 (Z/%) 44 NIANER N/ATER 2/2 1 1
Mr. ZHAO Zhijun HEERAE
(Chief Executive Officer) (7784%) 4/4 N/ATNE i NATNER 1 n
Mr. YAN Haiting (Note 1) BE=hE(#T) 34 NATER NATER  NATER 10 1N
Mr. WANG Wenbo TUREE 4/4 N/AT N/ATER N/ATER N/AT n
Ms. YANG Weixia BEERL 4/4 N/AT N/ANEF N/ATER N/ANER 1
Mr. WANG Ping (Note 1) TREE(HT) 3/4 N/AT N/ATER N/ATER N/AT ”n
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. XIE Qingxi (Note 2) WEELE(H2) 14 NATNER NANER  NANER  NANER NANER
Mr. FU Pengxu (Note 2) EBEEE2) 1/4 N/AT N/ANEF N/ATER N/AT N/ARER
Independent BU#HTEE
non-executive Directors
Mr. CHU Kin Wang, Peleus KERILE 444 22 1 22 NATNER 1
Mr. LI Zhigiang FREE 4/4 202 NANER  NANER 7N 171
Mr. ZHANG Jinhua REZLAE 4/4 2/2 n 2/2 1 1
Ms. SHI Hongmei (Note 1) PRBRL(HT) 3/4 2/2 N/ANEF N/ATER N/AT N/ARER
Note 1: Appointed on 1 April 2014 i1 RZZT—NFMA—BEZE

Note 2: Resigned on 23 May 2014

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
and not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board and ensuring that all material issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
and the implementation of the approved strategies of the
Group. The Board is headed by the Chairman, Mr. Wilson Sea.
The Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Zhao Zhijun.
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With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman is
committed to ensuring all the Directors are properly briefed
onissues to be proposed at the Board meetings and be provided
with adequate information in a timely manner.

INEDs

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 INEDs,
representing at least one-third of the Board and with at least
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise
throughout the 2014 Financial Year.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the INEDs of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent
of the management and free of any relationship that could
materially interfere with the exercise of their independent
judgment.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to
the Board for its decision. Generally, the executive Directors
constantly meet on an informal basis and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to
monitor and ensure the management carry out the directions
and strategies set by the Board correctly and appropriately.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to
understands his responsibilities as a Director and the business,
operating activities and development of the Company. Every
Director is required to devote sufficient time and involvement
in the affairs of the Board and the material matters of the
Company and to serve the Board with such degree of care
and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided
to each Director and will be updated from time to time. All
Directors have been updated and briefed the changes in legal
and regulatory matters to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the
Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities
under the laws and regulations.
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Each executive Director is responsible for the management of
the different functions of the business of the Group. The non-
executive Directors attend the Board meetings and give their
opinions on the business strategy of the Company and review
the financial and operation performance of the Group.

The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgment on strategic direction, development, performance and
risk management of the Group. The INEDs are all or a majority
of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any
person as a Director to fill a casual vacancy on or as an
additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who are
experienced and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary
duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be
recommended to the Board.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial
term of three years and each service agreement will continue
to be in effect thereafter until terminated by either party by
giving to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice
in writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors was appointed for a specific term of three
years. All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are
eligible for re-election pursuant to the Articles.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board
either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board shall
retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the next following
general meeting after appointment. At every AGM, one-third
of the Directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The
Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement
and re-election as mentioned above shall be taken into account
in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being
but shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of
Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible for
re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed
decision on their re-election. Any appointment, resignation,
removal or re-designation of Director shall be timely disclosed
to the shareholders by announcement and shall include in
such announcement, the reasons given by the Director for his
resignation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 Board Committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Strategy Committee, to
assist the Board for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. The terms of reference setting out
the principles, procedures and arrangements of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee are available on the website of the Company. The
Board Committees report to the Board their decisions and
recommendations at the Board meetings.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 19 October 2011 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and maintained on the websites of the
Company and HKEx. The members of the Audit Committee
are Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, Mr. Li Zhigiang, Mr. Zhang
Jinhua and Ms. Shi Hongmei. Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, has been the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review,
oversee and supervise the effectiveness of the Group's
financial reporting process, internal control systems and risk
management.

The Audit Committee will hold meetings at least twice a year.

During the 2014 Financial Year, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held. The Audit Committee has recommended
to the Board on the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Company’s external auditors for the coming
year and the related resolution shall be put forth in the coming
AGM.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of
the audit and its cost effectiveness as well as the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditors.
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During the 2014 Financial Year, the Audit Committee has,
amongst other things, reviewed the semi-annual and annual
results of the Company and the internal control matters of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
in conjunction with the auditors, the audited annual financial
statements of the Group for the 2014 Financial Year and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The
annual report for the 2014 Financial Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's external
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, provided interim review
and annual audit services. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the total fee paid/payable in respect of services provided
by the Group’s external auditors is set out below:
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Annual audit services FEEZR 1,214
Interim review services o HA I B8 AR 75 410

There was no non-audit services provided by the Group's
external auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 19 October
2011, with its terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintained on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The members of the
Nomination Committee are Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus and Mr. Zhang Jinhua. Mr. Wilson Sea is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
policies and making recommendations to the Board on
nominations, appointment of Directors and Board succession.
During the 2014 Financial Year, the Committee has, amongst
other things, developed selection procedures for candidates
for directorship after considering different criterion including
appropriate professional knowledge and industry experience.
The Committee has also reviewed the size, structure and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of
the INEDs. The Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties and it can seek independent professional
advice at the Company's expense if necessary.

The Nomination Committee will hold meetings at least once a
year.

During the 2014 Financial Year, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held. On 28 March 2014, the Nomination
Committee convened the first meeting for 2014 with all of the
members attended such meeting. The meeting nominated the
appointment of Mr. Wang Ping, Mr. Yan Haiting and Ms. Shi
Hongmei as new Directors; the re-election of all Directors at
the annual general meeting held on 9 June 2014; assessed the
independency of Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus, Mr. Li Zhigiang
and Mr. Zhang Jinhua; reviewed the members, structure and
composition of the Board and discussed the sufficiency of
time and efforts devoted to the performance of duties by the
directors of the Company.

On 31 December 2014, the Nomination Committee convened
the second meeting for 2014 with all of the members attended
such meeting. The meeting discussed and nominated the re-
designation of Mr. Wilson Sea and Mr. Yan Haiting as executive
directors.

Diversity Policy and Measures

The Company is committed to ensure an appropriate balance
in the diversity of skills, experiences and perspectives and
angles of the Board members so as to support the execution
of business strategies and efficient operation of the Board. The
Company considered that “Diversity” is a broad idea. When
designing the combination of the Board members, the Company
may considered the diversity of members in various aspects,
including but not limited to sex, age, culture and education
background, professional experiences, skills, knowledge and
terms of service. The Board appoints its members based on
their talents and in accordance with the business mode and
specific up-to-date needs of the Company. It also refers to the
objective conditions and the benefits of the diversity of the
Board members in selecting candidates.
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Measurable Targets of Diversity Policy

The selection of Board members is based on a series of
aspects of diversity, including but not limited to sex, age,
culture and education background, professional experiences,
skills, knowledge and terms of service. The final decision is
made upon the advantages of the candidates and their possible
contribution to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 19 October
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintained on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The members of the
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Zhao Zhijun, Mr. Chu Kin
Wang, Peleus and Mr. Zhang Jinhua. Mr. Zhang Jinhua is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee will hold meetings at least once
a year.

During the 2014 Financial Year,
Remuneration Committee was held.

one meeting of the

During the 2014 Financial Year, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the structure of remuneration for executive
Directors and assessed performance of executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the
determination, within agreed terms of reference, of specific
remuneration packages for executive Directors and senior
management, including salaries, retirement benefits, bonuses,
long-term incentives, benefits in kind and any compensation
payments. The Remuneration Committee commits to bringing
independent insight and scrutiny to the development and
review process of the Group with regards to remuneration. No
director is allowed to take part in any discussion about his own
remuneration.

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration disclosed are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements. The Directors’ fee
shall be subject to shareholders’ approval at general meetings.
Other emoluments shall from time to time be determined
by the Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities and subject to a review by the Remuneration
Committee.
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Strategy Committee

The Board of the Company established the Strategy Committee
of the Board on 28 March 2013 with an aim to adopt to needs
of the strategic development of the Company, enhance the
core competitiveness of the Company, ensure the development
plans of the Company, improve the investment decision
form, strengthen the scientific decision-making, uplifting the
efficiency in investment decisions and quality of decisions
and optimize the management structure of the Company. The
current members of the Strategy Committee of the Company
are Mr. Wilson Sea, Mr. Zhao Zhijun, Mr. Yan Haiting, Mr. Li
Zhigiang and Mr. Zhang Jinhua. Mr. Wilson Sea is the Chairman
of the committee.

The Strategy Committee will convene at least a meeting
annually.

The Strategy Committee convened a meeting for 2014. The
meeting reviewed the overall strategic and development plan of
the Company and considered part of investment programs.

ACCOUNTANCY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing
the Company’s financial statements for 2014 Financial Year
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Company’s annual report
is prepared and published in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely
manner. The Directors are provided with adequate information
to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial
and other information on matters for their approval.

The statement prepared by the auditor of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibility to the shareholders
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 76 to 77 of this annual
report.

Internal controls

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets of
the Group. The Company has from time to time reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control systems in order to ensure
that they meet with the dynamic and ever changing business
environment.
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During the 2014 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and the training
programmes and budget through the Internal Audit Department
and the Audit Committee.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for convening extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of dispatch of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Requisitionist(s)”) may, by written requisition (the
"Requisition”) to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in the
Requisition. The Requisition shall be lodged with the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 390,
3rd Floor, Peninsula Centre, 67 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The EGM shall be held within
two months after the dispatch of the Requisition. In the event
that the Board fails to convene the EGM within twenty-one
days after the dispatch of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for shareholders to raise enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board
through the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Unit 390, 3rd Floor, Peninsula Centre, 67 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong for handling.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Effective communication

The Board recognizes the importance of continuing
communications with shareholders and strives to ensure
the timeliness, completeness and accuracy of information
disclosure to shareholders and to the protection in the interests
of shareholders. As a channel to further promote effective
communication, the Group maintains a website, allowing
shareholders to access updates on the Company’s particulars
where the Company’s announcements, financial information
and other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders
through general meeting of the Company to communicate with
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and all directors would
attend the general meeting to answer any questions from
shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meetings on each substantially separate issue. A shareholder is
permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote
in his stead. In accordance with the Articles, the notice of AGM
would be sent to all Shareholders at least 20 business days and
no less than 21 clear days before the meeting and the notice of
all other general meetings would be sent at least 10 business
days and no less than 21 clear days before the meeting.

Voting by poll

The Articles have set out the rights of shareholders and
procedures demanding and conducting a poll on resolutions at
general meeting. Shareholder’s rights to demand a poll have
been specified in corporate communications to shareholders
and details of such rights are explained at the general meeting
of shareholders by the Chairman. In order to comply with the
Listing Rules, all the general meetings will be voted by way
of poll. The results of the poll, if any, are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Amendment on the Company’s Constitutional
Documents

There is no amendment on the Company’'s memorandum of
association and the Articles during the 2014 Financial Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

Code for securities transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"). The Company has
made specific enquiry of all the Directors regarding any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the 2014 Financial Year
and they have confirmed their full compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the 2014 Financial Year.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate
dealings in securities of the Company by certain employees the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the holding companies
who are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company or its securities.
The Company has made specific enquiry of the relevant
employees regarding non-compliance with the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees during the 2014
Financial Year and they have confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard set out in the said code for the 2014
Financial Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Hung Man Yuk, Dicson as
the Company Secretary, and Mr. Hung is responsible for all
the secretarial service. Mr. Hung confirmed that for the year
under review, he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal control systems are maintained so as to
safeguard the Group's assets and the interest of shareholders.
The Board is responsible for reviewing the internal control
policies and has delegated the day-to-day management of
operational risks to the Executive Directors.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Group’s
annual results and interim results are announced on a timely
basis.
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Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA VEHICLE COMPONENTS
TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 145, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2014 and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the “Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance”), and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BAE R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at
December 31, 2014, and of its profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 27, 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+=—A=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-NmEF —E—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
WisE ARETT ARBFIT
Revenue Wz 8 830,704 634,171
Cost of sales $HERK AR (656,811) (501,659)
Gross profit EF 173,893 132,512
Other income and expenses, HE A RFEY
other gains and losses Hiblezs M EE 9 (16,990) 31,168
Selling and distribution expenses S MDA (46,745) (37,678)
Research and development T
expenditure (25,135) (19,284)
Administrative expenses TTHRX (48,388) (44,314)
Finance costs RE Bk AR 10 (31,629) (13,654)
Profit before tax BT R A 11 5,006 48,750
Taxation T1E 12 (2,449) (9,455)
Profit for the year F R 2,557 39,295
Other comprehensive expense Ememms
Items that may be reclassified HEsk@ s 2
subsequently to profit or loss: Em 2 EH -
Exchange difference arising on BEGINETSATEE
translation of foreign operation b 5 258 (44) (265)
Profit and total comprehensive FRHEF N 2EMALREE
income for the year 2,513 39,030
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB) BlRERN-HEARARK) 15 0.01 0.11
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBEAARR T
At 31 December 2014
R-FE—FE+=—A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Kiat AR¥T T ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 16 438,357 445,044
Prepaid lease payments BEEe 17 136,968 136,465
Deposits for acquisition of property, BEWE BEK
plant and equipment B tien 114 513
Interest in an associate R—EBE AR 2R 18 2,500 2,500
Intangible assets EREE 19 - 412
Available for sale investment AR ERE
— unlisted limited partnership —FEHmAREE AT 20 65,761 65,421
Goodwill ma 21 29,655 29,655
Deferred expenditure REE A 490 -
Deferred tax assets BERTHEE 22 3,558 3,807
677,403 683,817
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories w8 23 117,859 83,832
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE i EYRIE 24 375,061 307,416
Prepaid lease payments ERHEE 17 3,007 2,970
Restricted bank balances SRR BISRTTAE B 25 84,290 54,970
Bank balances and cash RITER LIRS 25 86,763 52,400
666,980 501,588
TOTAL ASSETS EEHAE 1,344,383 1,185,405
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBARs
Amount due to an associate FEfF— & A R FOR 6,669 850
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENIE 26 416,668 324,538
Advance from customers RERFZBNR 2,375 2,496
Borrowings — due within one year B ——F AT H 27 338,744 295,593
Income tax payable JE TS5 H: 20,234 23,238
Deferred income PEIELA 28 817 865
Provisions B 29 11,620 7,500
797,127 655,080
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (130,147) (153,492)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRAE
LIABILITIES aE 547,256 530,325
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At 31 December 2014

R-F—mFE+=A=4+—H

2014 2013
—E-E —ET—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
WisE ARETT AREBTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREAE
Borrowings — due after one year B3k ——4F 12 3 HA 27 147,832 135,203
Other payables HAib e FRIE 26 777 1,048
Deferred income PEIELA 28 9,273 7,213
157,882 143,464
TOTAL LIABILITIES FEN=R 955,009 798,544
OWNERS' EQUITY BB AR
Share capital R A 30 31,318 31,318
Reserves B 358,056 355,543
TOTAL OWNERS' EQUITY BEAEZET 389,374 386,861
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ BEREEAERES
EQUITY 1,344,383 1,185,405

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 145 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

March 27, 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. ZHAO Zhijun

FIBEMAZHEAVBRRLELEEN _F
—hFE=A- T HAERRETIE - AT

ATHRREE

Ms. YANG Weixia

HEERE BEELT
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE=F—MEF A=t HILFE

Reserves
Share B
capital/ Total
paid-in Share Capital Surplus  Translation Retained owners'
capital premium reserves reserves reserve earnings equity
x/ BEA
BfRE  ROVRE  RARE  RHEE  RERE  REBER BESH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT ARETRT ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
(note a) (note b)
(Hita) (Histn)
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%-F—H 26,217 125,271 42,917 20,769 (207) 66,572 281,539
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - 39,295 39,295
Exchange difference arising REMELESER
on translation - - - - (265) - (265)
Profit and total comprehensive  FRER R2ERALE
income for the year - - - - (265) 39,29 39,030
Appropriations B - - - 4,331 - (4,331) -
Issue of new shares (Note 30)  E{THTR (Hz230) 5,101 61,191 - - - - 66,292
At 31 December 2013 W-E-=#+-A=1-H
and 1 January 2014 RZT-TE-A-H 31318 186,462 42917 25,100 (472) 101,536 386,861
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 2,557 2,557
Exchange difference arising BERELESZR
on translation - - - - (44) - (44)
Profitand total comprehensive  FREHIR2ERA L5
income for the year - - - - (44) 2,567 2,513
Appropriations B - - - 1193 - (1,193) -
As at 31 December 2014 RZE-WE+ZA=1+-H 31,318 186,462 42917 26,293 (516) 102,900 389,374
Notes: et -

(a)

The balance as at 1 January 2013 mainly arising from various
reorganisation to streamline the Group's structure prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The balance comprising statutory surplus reserve and discretionary
surplus reserve, which are non-distributable and the transfer to these
reserves is determined according to the relevant laws in the mainland
China (the “PRC") and by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries
in accordance with the Article of Associate of the subsidiaries. Statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous years’ losses or
convert into additional capital of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company.

Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to expand the existing
operations of the Company's PRC subsidiaries.
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For the year Ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+=—A=1+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before tax R AL g A 5,006 48,750
Adjustments for: KAEH AT A%
Amortisation of intangible assets B Y 412 449
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BB RRBINE
equipment 20,574 14,468
Deferred income released to profit or loss B IBRARIEI A (1,378) (1,182)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEMEREDN
plant and equipment (Uezf) B 1R (17) 20
Interest income FEWA (2,672) (2,836)
Interest expense BRI 31,629 13,654
Investment income EWA (4,063) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect THEEYE  BMEMRERN
of deposits for acquisition of property, WS WMARREERE
plant and equipment 1,508 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect T EERAREEE
of inventories 2,500 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FhE fth U A RERR
other receivables KR EEE 8,491 2,020
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ME - BB MR TR
property, plant and equipment BUERE 33,680 -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised ThE Z NGB ER A
in respect of trade receivables, net RIEEE - F58 (4,159) -
Release of prepaid lease payments S ENE K 3,021 2,965
Unrealised exchange gain REAIRE W a (340) -
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEHRNEERERE
in working capital 94,192 78,308
Increase in inventories FEEm (36,527) (4,284)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K E b pE U iIE g hn (72,021) (69,344)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N E AR SRIEIE N 95,904 57,327
Decrease in advance from customers KERERENFZOR D (121) (750)
Increase in deferred expenditure IRIE ST 3B AN (490) -
Cash generated from operations TSI 4 80,937 61,257
Income tax paid B TSR (5,204) (3,299)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEFrE5REFE 75,733 57,958
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For the year Ended 31 December 2014
BE—FHF+=A=1+—HLFE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETE
Additions of property, plant and equipment  SREWE - KE L& (37,874) (76,444)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BAME - BELEERS
plant and equipment (11,334) (4,211)
Grants received in relation to acquisition MEEWE  BWELERE
of property, plant and equipment BllitES 3,390 -
Interest received 2UFIE 2,672 2,836
Investment in an associate R—EEE R FINIRE - (2,500)
Investment in available for sale investment At B &R EHITE - (65,421)
Investment income WA E 4,063 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE « HENLEREMEGRIE
plant and equipment 549 552
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEEBEMNHES (3,561) (110)
Placement of restricted bank deposits TFIRZRERITIER (84,290) (54,970)
Release of restricted bank deposits R PRSI RITIE K 54,970 45,000
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ZE AR S EE (71,415) (155,268)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Advance from an associate RE A& A R ER 5,819 850
Interest paid EAFE (31,554) (28,375)
New borrowings raised s 413,716 391,936
Proceeds from issue of new shares BATHRD PSS 3UE = 66,292
Repayment of borrowings EEER (357,936) (307,293)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& E8 i85S 55 30,045 123,410
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRBESEEWILINTE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 34,363 26,100
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FURESRRESEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 52,400 26,300
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 86,763 52,400
Cash and cash equivalents represented REBRRESSEWERITHS
by Bank balances and cash ERE 86,763 52,400
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STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB130,147,000. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into account
the available banking facilities of RMB262,000,000 and
internal financial resources of the Group, the Group has
sufficient working capital for its present requirements that is
for at least the next twelve months commencing from the
date of the consolidated financial statements. Hence, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

1. GENERAL 1 —REBR
The Company is incorporated as an exempted company KRR E——FUA-++tHERE/H
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 27 April 2011. EaAMKIAEREERATR - HEEGQ
Its immediate parent is Wealth Max Holdings Limited 7] AWealth Max Holdings Limited([ Wealth
(“Wealth Max") (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) Max] + REBR LB S M) RE KL
and its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Wilson Sea (also | 75 AWilson Seat £ (AT EHEM) &
known as Xi Chun Ying) and other individuals who have BEMREE —BTEMAL - AR a MM
agreed to act-in-concert. The registered office and principal MEENTELEMUENFRIARER
place of the Company is set out in section under heading — 8 RRAFHRHE E——F+— A
of “Corporate Information” of the annual report. The T =HRREEBBER AR AT ([H
shares of the Company has been listed on the Main Board REFDERLET »
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) with effect from 23 November 2011.
The Company is an investment holding company. The AARBILEERAR  ANBARNEE
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 35. FEIEHIPAMIFESS ©
The consolidated financial statements are presented in REMBREARNQRETENBARILCEE
Renminbi (“RMB"), the currency of the primary economic BIREFELEERRHNEBEARE(TAR
environment in which the principal subsidiaries of the )25 o
Company operate.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2 B SBREREE

N-ZE—NE+-_F=+—8B &A&E@AHARK
FHaBEFEFBEHAREE130,147,0007T °© AR 7]
EERA ZEIEEAHABTHEREA
R#262,000,0007T XA E B A HER -
AEBEERKEELES  UWENAKREH
BHEABHERARED T ZEAANRES
Z oA RAEVBRRDRFELEREE
i o



3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")
For the purpose of preparing and presenting the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has
consistently adopted the amended Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs"), Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"), and interpretations (“HK(IFRIC) —
Int”), which are mandatorily effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2014,

The application of the amended HKFRSs and interpretation
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initative?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation*
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions!
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants*
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements*
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception*
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with
limited exceptions

3 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2018

Other than HKFRS 15, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations will have no
material impact on the Group.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective. The core principle of HKFRS
15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step b: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Cont’d)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

Basis of preparation

Except for investment in unlisted limited partnership, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FE=TEHE(E)
(Cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont’d) WREXE(E)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Goodwill (Cont'd)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of an associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Appropriate adjustments have been
made to conform the associate’s accounting policies to
those of the Group.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate.

TESHBERGE)

BE(E)
HERBRSESSMRE - EE(GSEt
AETEHEN G EESE -

REE RN ARNER
BERRAAEEBEEEATZEINER -
BEAFENTBEESEERE TN RE

LREORTE M IR SRR ZFEE -

BENRNEE  BENAEDRSTERE
EERIAZRFHEEMERE - SMESEFHAM
5 BERRNMBRRVIREAEEAER
ERTHRBER SR EHAERAE —BH
BEBRRE - EFHEERE  BSHE
ARG TR AR EERR

RiBRERE  RBERRNRETINHRK
ERRE VBN RER - BIgEHAE
NRERBAEBMEBE R RINEBER L EME
EER o HAKEPTAE 2 QRN EREH
HATAZE L A En (BRER LBKA
SERBERARNKREFE-BONEMNEK
HitEs)  AIARSEEUHEREMGE—LE
1B BINBBRERTEECEDERLMEE
BESRKRZEZ QRN ROBER THER -

REFERRINIRE BRIRE T RE 2 A E
B RRRAREEALR -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Interest in an associate (Cont’d)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
sales related taxed.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time

all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group's policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy
below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction
in progress), are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

TESHBERGE)

W - BERRE

Y% - BB MEE(BREBIERNEESHE
EmeE iR - AARITRARHET @ HEE
BTSN RRARER RIETE R RER
EEE(INE)REEBERRKRIIR

FETRERARYE - BB RRERR (B
TRERRIN B f T AT A IR T R E fvfE
BUABAOEMIHERAR » BEFAMEAEH -
BHERIFTETEDNEREHRT AR
MEA T ESNFEOATRREEAS -

EEIEBERFLEEARMEEZER

BROME - BER&E - EERIRERA
AR HERABEBEIIE - EEEIR
TR NEBERTERRE  ERIRSEA
ME - BMEREZHEEEER - ZEEEN
WEREEARARTHARRELMYE
BEMRMEEFIAIRR -

BRIME -« BEREHEEE RN L ERNTER

BEERZEETSH KA B REENER
REUHIER - HEXBEYME - BELRE
BAEMEENRERBERREHEEEMS
POREREENRAENEZRETE  UNERE
TR



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.

Prepaid lease payments
Prepaid lease payments representing land use rights in
the PRC are stated at cost and amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Prepaid lease payments which
are to be amortised in the next twelve months or less are
classified as current assets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Cont'd)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset
is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses
(if any) on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations are
recognised at the date of sale of the relevant products, at
the director’'s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the Group's obligation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. XESBER(E)

(Cont’d)

Share-based payment

For shares granted to senior management by the
shareholders (i.e. Founders), the fair value of the employee
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of shares granted at the grant date and recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the shares
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding amount
recognised in capital reserve as deemed contribution from
owners.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities of fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as available-for-
sale (“AFS") financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees or points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counter
party; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation.

EERS BN EERERAT
“z-mreg 101

TEETEHEGE)

SRMIAE)

SHEEE)

A ESREE

AHHEESREEAE ARSI E
BHEAQENRKERIE  OFZFHEE
o) B BERIZATEYEREN S EEMNIE
PTHET A -

W& BT 5 MERE A FE TR it
ENAHEERAKE - REFRERAR
BHAABEARNZERAREFENDT
ETHE - THZRANEEMRN S RENRD #
AR EEESR(FR TX BB EERE
BEERHAEFBER)

B ENRIA

B RN MR TR A P 7 [ E B R R AN RN
HITESRMEE  MEGELTED ST ER
B - IFHERIEK - ERLERFIR(BEES
NE AR - R BIIRTT AR M IRITAE
BRRE) TR BB FR A S HA A RME
AEBABEREE -

EREERE
EREENRHERRFERETR - HE
EEERER  RENMGARKRESRED
PHATBMEERBLEN —AXRLZBAEMFM
XEFE  AemEELREE -

BEMTEBEEA e

BT ARE T EBEAMBENE « 5

o ERAEH WMEHASINIELNR
R K

o BRATRKESHEXMTEER -



China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited

102 Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+=—A=1+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does
not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group entities are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities (including amount due to
an associate, trade and other payables and borrowings)
are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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—FEF A=+ —HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group's management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are
expected to be shorter than estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Change in these
estimations may have a material impact on the results
of the Group. Details of the movement of property,
plant and equipment and the estimated useful lives are
set out in Note 16.

(b) Estimated impairment of trade and other
receivables
When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amount of trade and other receivables is set out in
Note 24. Details of additional or reversal of impairment
on trade debts or other debts are set out in Note 9.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(c) Estimated impairment of inventories
The Group records inventories at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price for inventories, less all the
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sales.

Operational procedures have been in place to monitor
this risk, including regular review by the management
of the inventory ageing listing on a periodical basis
for those aged inventories. This involves comparison
of carrying value of the aged inventory items with
the respective net realisable value. The purpose is to
ascertain whether allowance is required to be made for
any obsolete and slow-moving items. If the selling price
is lower than expected, additional allowance would
be recognised. The carrying amount of inventories is
set out in Note 23. Impairment loss of RMB2,500,000
(2013: nil) for obsolete and slow-moving inventories
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2014.

(d) Provision for warranty claims

Provision for warranty is made based on the possible
claims on the products by customers with reference
to the warranty coverage period and the percentage of
warranty expenses incurred over total sales amounts
historically. In case where the actual claims are
greater than expected, a material increase in warranty
expenses may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a claim takes
place. The carrying amount of provision for warranty is
set out in Note 29.

(e) Estimated impairment on goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, further
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2014,
the carrying amount of goodwill was RMB29,655,000
(2013: RMB29,655,000) and no impairment loss was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2014. Details of the impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in Note 21.

5. EXGF ARG TBREREE
ERR(E)

A TRERRETERIR(E)

(c) FEGHE
KEBRAARAERFENREKES
) BFEANRE - IRERFERTFENG
st EERI AR ERAAREITIHE
PREREIRA -

NEBEDHITEBERFAERFERE
E BEEEETHRREFEEYN
GFEEREE - WP REBRREFER
ERMREENREE A S2RFE - BA
AT R AMTMRERSHEEEE
HEHE o MEEENTEL - BlekRE
INEE o TR EMBRMEES M FE23 &
E-F-—NE+_A=+—HILEFE "
BEEARENEHEEREESEAAR
#2 500,0007C(—B—=14 : &) o

(d) RIFEFERE
REBEDR2EREARMMEESL
MREFAXEBTRKEESEN BT
REPHEMMAIEREMFESL < WE
RREZNEY  ARERAXAIERE
g Mt B ERRENBENER

R o RIEBRROBRE AN HIFE29

(e) FHEGEHE
ETHEEaRESEHBEMEDR
MIRSELEBUNEREEETHT
ZEREEFESEAERGEARESE
SEMNTEHEENARRERENREE
BRIRE - DAGTEIRE - MERAKRIES
MEENTER - AR sEeEAE— PR
EBEEE R_ZE-—"NF+-A=1+—
H - BHEEREARERSARK29,655000
T (ZF—=%F : AR ®¥ 29655000
L) MBE_ZE—=FLK_ZT—NF
+ = A=+ —HLFEREERTMAR
BEEE - FERERENRNFBRIT
21 IR o



5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(f) Estimated impairment of Property, Plant and
Equipment
The Group reviews the carrying values of its property,
plant and equipment to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets are impaired. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment individually, the
management determines the recoverable amount
of CGU to which the property, plant and equipment
belong. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment is set out in Note 16.

Following completion of the relocation majority
production facilities from the old plant in Nanyang, PRC,
to the new plant area in the immediate vicinity, certain
plants, ancillary facilities and office buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB33,680,000
in the old plant area becoming idle and were fully
impaired as the expected recoverable amounts of
relevant assets are insignificant. Impairment loss of
RMB33,680,000 (2013: nil) in respect of property, plant
and equipment was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts
(which include borrowings), cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, capital and surplus reserves,
and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a periodical basis. As part of the review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

7. €T H

(a)

Financial instrument

SRITAER

Carrying amount at
31 December

Rt A=+—RAMKREE

classification 2014 2013
SEMIESE —E—MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
Financial assets
SREE
Trade and other receivables* Loans and receivables 360,864 303,374
B 5 I Ho A FEUGRIE * B Rk EWRIAE
Restricted bank balances Loans and receivables 84,290 54,970
IR HIRITEEER ER R EWRIE
Bank balances and cash Loans and receivables 86,763 52,400
RITHEBR LR ® Bk EWGRIE
531,917 410,744
Financial liabilities
YR
Amount due to an associate At amortised cost 6,669 850
JEAT — it & A R FA TRERHRAR
Trade and other payables** At amortised cost 360,531 287,212
B 5 N EH M ERTRIE* TREHR AR
Borrowings — due within one year At amortised cost 338,744 295,593
B — —FNEIH Eize: 31D WIN
Borrowings — due after one year At amortised cost 147,832 135,203
Bk — —Fiz 35 TR SRR
853,776 718,858

* Excluded advances to suppliers and prepayments.
**  Excluded payroll and welfare payables, other tax payable and
accruals.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The management monitors and manages the financial
risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures
by degree and magnitude of risks. The risks included
market risk (including interest rate risk and currency
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

(b)

* MEERHRERRSRLIANTEA
A BEEMNTARERN - EAENBIA
KIERHER -

tREAKEEEERBEE

BEEEEBAMRRTEER I EEE
AEELEFENSRER - BEBRFG
BREEENRERIEEREAEET
DI - ZERBEET SRR (RIERN %
R EkE¥RER) EERRMRBES
[E\B o TSP B KL S LR RO BOR
EIEEETE N B R % A A RE R N B
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 7. EWMIEE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (a) EWMTEERI(E&)

policies (Cont’d)

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIZE

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk on the variable rate of interest earned on
the restricted bank balances and bank balances.
The Group's borrowings have fixed interest rates
and therefore, are subject to fair value interest rate
risk.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for restricted
bank balances and bank balances as the financial
impact arising on changes in interest rates was
minimal.

The Group monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

MERBEA—EEBTANAFERK
DNk eSSl e iy &l
mARMER o NEEREZRGIRITA
Ko SR1T HE R P ERER B0 S, 6 A 28 ) R
RS REN KRR - AEEER
VABIE M RETE - B R FER X

o B 4BR
Mgl & -

HRMEEBHELNHBEZERTR
B RWEZRBRITAERMIRITH
ERAmBLEURE DT

AEBERFIRER  LERUEBEZ
BEHREAFIRAR -

(ii) Currency risk (i) & ¥z pz

Certain bank balances and other borrowing/
debentures of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Euro. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

AEEETRITEBR R EMERESTT
BT (ET]) RETEHE - A%KE A
AL EONE SRR - AT - BEEER
RIMNER R - R ERE B E
RINER °

RBERR - REBLINEHENEE
BEMKREERT

2014 2013

—E—MEF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Bank balances RITEERR

- HK$ — 57T 33,333 107
— Euro — BT 1,352 1,321
34,685 1,428

Other receivables — HK$ Hip el E — BT 4,041 -
Other borrowing/debentures — HK$ HifEREE BT (42,230) (6,936)

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for the
currency risk as the financial impact arising on
changes in foreign exchange rates was minimal.

MREXBBEL Y MBTETA - &
3 5 A AR LGB ST
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(c) Credit risk
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which cause financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position

Credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a
customer or third party to a financial asset fails to meet
its contractual obligations. At 31 December 2014,
the Group had concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables as 73.2% (2013: 51.9%) of total trade
receivables were due from top 10 customers.

The Group manages this risk by reviewing the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt and
other debt at the end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts.

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on
an average credit period of 90 days. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the credit terms are granted
to original automobile manufacturers based on the
creditworthiness and the Group's existing relationships
with the customers. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties comprise of a number of banks which
are state-owned banks located in the PRC or those
with good reputation and high credit ratings assigned
by PRC or international credit-rating agencies.

The Group had concentration of credit risk by
geographical location as trade receivables and bills
receivables comprise various debtors which are all
located in PRC during the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2014.

Other than the concentration of the credit risk on trade
receivables, bills receivables, restricted bank balances
and bank balances, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(d) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
closely monitors its cash position resulting from its
operations and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due for
the foreseeable future. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB130,147,000 (2013:
RMB153,492,000). This exposes the Group to liquidity
risk if the Group could not fulfill its financial obligations.

The directors of the Company are satisfied that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due for the
next twelve months from the issuance date of these
consolidated financial statements after taking into
consideration of (i) available undrawn bank facilities
amounting to approximately RMB262,000,000 as at
31 December 2014 (2013: RMB281,000,000) and (ii)
internal generated funds.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities as at the
end of reporting period. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

(d) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

7. SWMIAE)
(d) AEESREK(E)

Liquidity and interest risk tables REEERFIF R
Weighted
average
effective Within3 3 months Over5 Undiscounted Carrying
interest rate months tolyear  1-2years  2-5years years  cash flows amount
il £57 =féR AR
EBiE  =fAR E-F -FERE  RMERIE  BERF BeRE KEE
RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR  AREBTT  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR  ARETR
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-MmE
tZA=1-H
Amount due toan associate  JEM—EHE AT
wE nfa 6,669 - - - - 6,669 6,669
Trade and other payables B RAMERE na 274152 83401 1,880 - - 359433 359433
Other payables to employees  JEAHES #IE 38 36 - 3% 283 408 248 1275 1,098
Borrowings EE 6.7 57,369 305,521 7,29 93,380 - 527564 486,576
338,190 389,258 73457 93,788 148 894,941 863,776
As at 31 December 2013 RoB-zE
t2A=t-8
Amount dug toan associate BN —FEEE A
2 nla 850 - - - - 850 850
Trade and other payables BARAMERE nfa 207,764 76,057 1,803 - - 285624 285624
Other payables to employess ~ ETEEMEMHZE 36 - 566 33 583 356 1,841 1588
Borrowings B3 6.6 68,034 248929 47406 105,624 - 469,993 430,79
276,648 325,552 49,545 106,207 356 757458 718,858
(e) Fair value (e) A¥E

The fair value of financial assets (other than investment
in unlised limited partnership) and financial liabilities
is determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

ERMEENIFLTERABARRER
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Products within each operating segment
The segment information reported was determined by
the types of products and the types of customers to
which the products are sold, which is consistent with
the internal information that are regularly reviewed
by the executive directors of the Company, who are
the chief operating decision makers (the “CODM") of
the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance.

The Group has two reportable and operating segments
as follows:

e OEM Market ("OEM") — manufacturing and selling
of automobile shock absorber and suspension
system products to the automobile market of
original automobile manufacturers.

e Automobile Aftermarket — manufacturing and
selling of automobile shock absorber and
suspension system products to the secondary
market of the automobile industry.

(b) Segment revenue and segment results

PEEREBEREERERAF
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8. Wk APER

(a)

(b)

BEEIBANER

FrERsRE) D AP ER TIAEMBIREE
EmmMEFPBUETE @ LEEAREKE
TBELERRA(EIREERRADK
ARARTEEERNEHADEERK
FHE RN A EE RS

REEHEEIATMIET2HEE DA -

e RERBEREMMHE(IRREBRIE
Bl - RERARAERERTS
HEAERIRS MBRARER

o ABEETS-WERAAETE
B = 45 45 IR S R
RRER -

D EB R K 2 BB AE

Segment revenue

Segment results

pan:i 6 DEPEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-MEFE —EB--F ZEB-NF —_T-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT AR¥TR ARBTT
OEM JREAERIERS 751,085 565,403 160,107 116,072
Automobile Aftermarket RBEETS 79,619 68,768 13,786 16,440
Total segment and DEfHAEE N 4R A
consolidated 830,704 634,171 173,893 132,512
Other income and expenses, Hfl A &R - Hiblk
other gains and losses =SB (16,990) 31,168
Selling and distribution HE RO HAX
expenses (46,745) (37,678)
Research and development  #f3%s
expenditure (25,135) (19,284)
Administrative expenses TR (48,388) (44,314)
Finance costs Bh& B AN (31,629) (13,654)
Profit before tax R A A A 5,006 48,750
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HE—F—

FEF = A=+—HILFE

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Segment revenue and segment results (Cont’d)
Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from sales of goods to external customers. There was
no inter-segment sales during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2014.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies disclosed
in Note 4. Segment results represent the gross profit
of each operating segment, conforming to the same
measurement reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.

Other than the segment revenue and segment profit
analysis presented above, information about assets
and liabilities was not regularly provided to the
CODM. Hence, no segment asset or segment liability
information is presented.

Geographical information

The Group principally operates in the PRC (country of
domicile of the operating subsidiaries). No material
non-current assets of the Group are located outside the
PRC.

Over 95% of the Group’'s revenue from external
customers is derived from the PRC (country of domicile
of the operating subsidiaries).

Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers which accounts for

8. WERDHER(E)

(b) pEUEBER D EBEE(E)
A E2RBEENHEEER TINIERP
EENlE BE_ZT—=FK=%
—mFE+-A=+—HIEFE  #BES
HRFEISHE -

BED R BR BT OD
EREBFARR - S LIS SE
SHOER - BHSRAREFEED
B T E B ERE A B R BB

B4R -

B oA £ 25189 2 2R e Ko o3 BB A D AT
Sh - WAREHMAEELERRARME
MEENMABENER - At - WEZ7)
IRy BEEL T HEE -

(c) HuiHER
AEE T ERGHE(ZENE A B M
BR)2E AEEMEEFRBDEE
R B LASMS [ ©

REBERBIMNBEFABKREELHTIB%
WA LSRG B (2 E K8 A R Y R i B
x) e

(d) BEEFEEFHNER
(AEERZZI0%HRIALNKREETER

10% or more of the Group's revenue are as follows: Pz mnT
2014 2013
—F-mE =%
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBFIT
OEM - Customer A FRRERER -FPA 157,571 107,107
OEM - Customer B [REBELER — & B 169,944 93,412
OEM — Customer C* REBERER —FPC* N/ATRE A 67,872
OEM - Customer D* [REERER — B FD* N/ATE A 66,168

*  The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total sales of the Group for the respective year.

* HBRENEE T RBAEE N HE S
EIHERTEMN10% °
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9. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES, OTHER 9. HMW AKX - HttlEZKEE
GAINS AND LOSSES

2014 2013
—=E—NmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
Allowance for doubtful other debts H1ith RERRAE (8,491) (2,020)
Dividends from investment in unlisted RIELTAERER AR
limited partnership WERKE 4,063 -
Donation B (276) (1,619)
Exchange loss, net P i EstE - FEE (1,099) (239)
Government grants (note) RATHE BN (K7 77) 12,602 21,918
Gain from scrap sales BERHEE e 2,971 4,115
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant  HE¥WE « BE & BEIES
and equipment (FE18) 17 (20)
Impairment loss on deposits for acquisition EEE ¥ - ME M RIEZSHR
of property, plant and equipment LY 5t (1,508) -
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - BRE KERERRERE
equipment (33,680) -
Interest income from bank deposits KB RITIF A FEWA 2,672 2,836
Others Hitb (1,864) 3,702
Reversal of allowance for doubtful trade 2 5 REERE#E R - F58
debts, net (Note 24) (Hi7E24) 4,159 -
Release of asset-related government e ok B 72 A R B ST 47 B
grants (Note 28) (K15#28) 1,378 1,182
Storage services income B EREWA 2,066 1,313
(16,990) 31,168
Note: et -
The grants represent incentives received by a PRC subsidiary for the Z TSR BN E A R AR R EE S
eminent contribution in technology development and encouragement ERIEEBMRZMES 2R - WE/MEBIDAR
of business development, etc. These grants are accounted for as PIVEEEVIEEAR) - T RAEMARRABEE A R E
immediate financial support with no future related costs nor related to FTEEER -

any assets.
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BEE KA
2014 2013
—2-ImF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFIT
Interest on: LA EIEHAE
Bank borrowings wholly repayable AR AFRNBEEENRITER
within five years 30,843 28,164
Other borrowings wholly repayable AR AFAEEEENHMER
within five years 711 211
31,554 28,375
Accretion on other payables HAb R FRIER EET & A
(Note 26) (H1i£26) 75 128
31,629 28,503
Less: Amounts capitalised D= N e k= = (14,849)
31,629 13,654
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
% %
Capitalisation rate BAR{bL % N/ATEH 6.59
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12.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1. BRBEANER
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: FrEAT & A E kR
2014 2013
—=E—NmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
Employee benefits expenses (including EERMNAZ(BIEESR)
directors):
— salaries and other benefits —FHa kEMEF 77,676 54,500
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — iR ki@ 5T 2t 2% 9,608 7,914
Total staff costs @8 TR 87,284 62,414
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2R M 3 M 1,624 1,674
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEESE
(included in administrative expenses) (BIEETHRAXA) 412 449
Cost of inventories recognised as BERARIZHFEKAR
expenses (included in cost of sales and (BREEHERA K&
research and development expenditure) i3 £ A) 666,766 507,763
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERERERTE
equipment 20,574 14,468
Release of prepaid lease payments RETEMNTES 3,021 2,965
TAXATION 12. B8
2014 2013
—E-ImF ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREEF T
Tax expense comprises: HIEFRA Y BIE
Current tax expense BUERT IE R 2 2,200 9,455
Deferred tax expense (Note 22) RERRIBASZ (A75522) 249 -
2,449 9,455

The current income tax expense for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2014 represents the PRC enterprise
income tax which is calculated at the prevailing tax rate on
the taxable income of the group entities in the PRC. Under
the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January
2008 onwards.

BEZZ—=FkZFT—NF+ZA=+—
HitFE® B EBRiETR Bt EMS
B BB TR B A R B B A E AR
WAIRIBITR TG E - BRIBEPECEMEH
E([REREBE]D) REEMSHENE R
A A= N\F—A—B i - PR
RNAIMER25% °
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12.

FEF = A=+—HILFE

TAXATION (Cont’d)

The Company, Merit Leader Investment Limited (“Merit
Leader”) and First Bridge Limited (“First Bridge") were
incorporated in jurisdictions under which they are not
subject to any income tax.

Guang Da (China) Automotive Components Holdings
Limited (“Guang Da Automotive”) was incorporated in
Hong Kong and has had no assessable profit subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax since its incorporation.

Way Assauto Srl was incorporated in Italy and has had
no assessable profit subject to any profits tax since its
incorporation.

On 15 December 2009, Nanyang Cijian Auto Shock
Absorber Company Limited (“Nanyang Cijian"”) obtained
“High and New Technology Enterprise” status for 3 years
that entitles Nanyang Cijian a preferential tax rate of 15%
for the period from 2011 to 2014 according to the PRC tax
law.

Other PRC established group entities did not have any
taxable profit for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2014.

12. R\ (E)

7K A &) & Merit Leader Investment Limited
([ Merit Leader | ) J First Bridge Limited
([First Bridge |) R B BT FI1SH 2 &)
SERE RS -

RR(PE)EWEFAZERARAF (KR
Bl REBEMAKL - BB EFMAZIA
TR ARRE B MG ERTE R

Way Assauto SrIRAEAFIFEMAKY - mMEH
FEMACSZ BATR I 4 B SR % R B BT (R
FIBH -

RZZFZENF+_A+HAB - EERAE
BARER A R A A ([FEERSITE ) BUS [ Sl
B A - IRIBERBEIFUE - mETREE=
FRKER BT ——FE_T—HFRE
15% BB ERLRFHL o

HR AR 2 REEBREBEE—F—=
FR-F-HFE+—A=+— Etiflfﬂ
EARIFERRTLE A o



12. TAXATION (Cont'd)
The tax charge for the years ended 31 December 2013
and 2014 can be reconciled to the profit before tax
per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

EERS BN EERERAT
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12. RIE(E)
HE-_Z—=FR_FT-—NF+-_A=+—
BEFEMHREBERYBEAEa R EMERE
W R FTRBRT A M BRA0T -

2014 2013
—ET-mEF —E—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Profit before tax B F A4 T 5,006 48,750
Tax at 256% R25% B R T ERITIE 1,252 12,188
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R IB BB S & 2,003 1,822
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  NA[HIF X T B2
tax purpose 6,427 4,853
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAERBTIMA BT ISR E
purpose (2,268) (479)
Tax effect of additional qualified expenses ZENA BAE A HIFIF M
deductible for tax purpose (note) HET 8 (M) (3,153) (2,589)
Effect of tax concessions granted to a m—EPEMNBARREREBEE
PRC subsidiary BN E (1,495) (6,340)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AL AR RN EEE
recognised (317) -
2,449 9,455

Note: The amount represents additional 50% income tax deduction in
respect of qualifying research and development expenditures
incurred for the year.

Hret - ZERERFAMELREBME LN
FHSMNB0% P ILHIA, ©



20 China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited
1 Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+=—A=1+—HIFE

13.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 13.EE - FETHRAEBREESHMH

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
Details of the emoluments paid to the directors of the
Company, include the Chief Executive of the Group, for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014 are as

(a) EEE<E
HE_Z—=Fk-_FT—HF+=A
—t+—HIFERAARFES(BIEAE
EEXEBTRAB)SIHBEFBEOT ¢

follow:
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREF T
Directors’ o
—fees —1e 1,405 1,256
— salaries and other benefits — e REMER 1,799 728
— discretionary bonus* —BEIEAL* 1,278 1,095
— retirement benefits scheme —IREAET SR
contributions 43 31
4,525 3,110
The emoluments of the directors on a named basis are BTN EEMESMT ¢
as follows:
2014 2013
—E—NEF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREFIT
Mr. Zhao Zhi Jun HEELE 1,200 1,090
Ms. Wang Wen Bo T ORSE 653 589
Ms. Yang Wei Xia BEEXT 699 654
Mr. Fu Peng Xu MEREE(RZE—NFRA
(resigned on 23 May 2014) —+=HE4T) 44 115
Mr. Xie Qing Xi FEEEER-_ZT—NFRHA
(resigned on 23 May 2014) —+=H#E) 44 115
Mr. Wilson Sea Wilson Sea%t 4 113 115
Mr. Zhang Jin Hua SREERE 140 144
Mr. Li Zhi Qiang &G gl o 140 144
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus KEERTE 140 144
Ms. Shi Hong Mei $RELZT (R4 A
(appointed on 1 April 2014) —BEZT) 106 -
Mr. Yan Hai Ting BE=rE(R_F—NFNA
(appointed on 1 April 2014) —REZRT) 85 -
Mr. Wang Ping FEEER-_ZE-MEEA
(appointed on 1 April 2014) —HEZMF) 1,161 -
4,525 3,110

Mr. Zhao Zhi Jun is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief

Executive.

HEERLETDRAARITHAAE - £X
REEME D BRERMIERITHRER
RERBAME



13.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES’' REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014 included 4 (2013: 3)
directors. The remunerations of the five highest paid

EERS BN EERERAT
—zprsg 121

BESF - FETBRAEREEFHFMH
(%)
(b) EEMS
BE-_T-—m&E+-_A=+—81*F
B AEENELAESFATEENS
(ZZ2—=F: =ZR)BF - ALESH

o ) ATHIF BT -
individuals are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-lmF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Employees (=]
— salaries and other benefits —¥e NEMET 2,572 2,346
— discretionary bonus* —BYIBIEAL* 1,625 1,612
— retirement benefits scheme —RIKEFIFT B
contributions 47 49
4,244 3,907
Their emoluments were within the following bands: FEMNMEN TATEHE -
2014 2013
—ZE—MF —E—=F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalents to
approximately Nil to RMB793,000)

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
(equivalents to approximately
RMB793,001 to RMB1,189,000)

21,000,000/ T (HEERHE

= AR#793,0007T) 3 3
1,000,001 7L21,500,000/8 7T

(FHEERHARET93,001TE

AFE#1,189,0007T) 2 2

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors of the Company or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors of the Company waived any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.

*  The discretionary bonus is determined having regard to
the performance and market trend by the remuneration
committee of the Company.

BE_ZT—=Fk=-F—0OF+=A
=+—HIFE  AEEBERARQF
FRESIAERSHFATINHE
LAEA IS AR E E 18 1) 52 Eh X B
Bo@EE HE_T—=Fr_ZT—NQ
F+ZA=Z1+—BLFE BIBEEAQF
BEERETATHB -

* O BBEADAARRTFHEZESREE
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14.DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 2013, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
following data:

14. B2
REBEZE-ZZT—NFERZFTE—=F+=A
=+—HLEFE SERESERRE -
B & B R AR MBS R (AT AR B, ©

15. SR ER)
FREREF TR TEUEE

2014 2013
—2-mE —EF=F
Earnings EF|
Profit for the year attributable to MEREAEFNS Z
owners of the Company for NARER AEIEFERET]
the purpose of basic earnings (AREFIT)
per share (RMB'000) 2,557 39,295
Number of shares e
Weighted average number of MEREAER NS 2 Ei@K
ordinary shares for the purpose of D15 81
basic earnings per share 384,000,000 358,575,342

No diluted earnings per share are presented as there
was no potential ordinary share outstanding during the
year or as at the end of reporting period.

HREFAREERE AR AEITE
SNETEE B MU B2 SREEERT -
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wires, circuits and drainages etc.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE
Furniture,
Motor fixture and Construction
Buildings vehicles equipment  Machinery in progress Others Total
B 8
P "E RikfE He ERIR Ht &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  AREBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note)
(Hi#)
CosT KA
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-A—H 54,479 9,301 4,980 147,684 234,086 11,617 462,147
Additions AE 279 2,206 429 8,853 73,001 1,422 86,190
Transfer from CIP BERTRER 172,631 2,376 194 89,728 (299,183) 34,254 -
Disposal HeE - (230) 4) (1,129) - - (1,363)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+-A
and 1 January 2014 =+-BR=Z-IF
—-A—A 227,389 13,663 5,599 245,136 7,904 47,293 546,974
Additions NE 126 2,788 1,589 5,953 34,745 3,112 48,313
Transfer from CIP BERTRER 30,115 - - - (30,115) - -
Disposal it - (523) (5) (153) - - (681)
Exchange realignment  [E# % - (2) (37) (113) - - (152)
At 31 December 2014  RZE-W%E+=A
=1+-A 257,630 15,916 7,146 250,823 12,534 50,405 594,454
ACCUMULATED ZHMERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=%-A-H (7,755) (2,059) (2,351) (71,315) - (4,773) (88,253)
Provided for the year EREE (1,566) (962) (460) (10,863) - 617) (14,468)
Eliminated on disposals 7\ ERFE$4 - 82 2 707 - - 791
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+-A
and 1 January 2014 Zt-AR-Z-NE
—-A-H (9,321) (2,939) (2,809) (81,471) - (5,390)  (101,930)
Provided for the year FREE (6,641) (1,236) (637) (10,130) - (1,930) (20,574)
Eliminated on disposal A EREEH - 16 2 131 - - 149
Impairment loss RERNER 2 AEEE
recognised in profit or
loss (10,808) (729) (744) (18,159) (1,657) (1,583) (33,680
Exchange realignment  [E3 3% - (1) 49 (110) - - (62)
At31 December 2014  R-Z—W&E+_A
=t-H (26,770) (4,889) (4,139) (109,739) (1,657) (8,903) (156,097)
CARRYING VALUES REE
At31 December 2014  R-Z-WE+=A
= 230,860 11,027 3,007 141,084 10,877 41,502 438,357
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=%+-AH
=1+-A 218,068 10,714 2,790 163,665 7,904 41,903 445,044
Note: Others mainly comprise various ancillary structures including Wit EthEZRESENBEEY  BEE
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the following estimated useful lives taking
into account of their estimated residual value:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of
lease, or 30 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixture and Over the shorter of the term of
equipment lease or 5-7 years
Machinery 1-15 years
Others 3-20 years

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
completed majority relocation of its working workshops
from old plant area (“Old Plant”) to new premise. Certain
of plants, ancillary facilities and office buildings becoming
idle that is considered to be a material impairment indicator
of the assets in Old Plant. At 31 December 2014, the
directors of the Company assessed the recoverable
amounts of assets in Old Plant, mainly based on expected
recoverable amounts upon disposal. An impairment loss
of approximately HK$33,680,000 (2013: nil), being the
excess of the carrying value of the Old Plant at the year
end over the corresponding recoverable amount, has
been recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2014.

16. 3% - MERRE(E)

BRAERZTIZNIN B2 - BE KR
B &R REMETRER - R TIIEFERF
HIA B AR E AT -

BT A H#A5K30%F
(AR HE BAE)
AE 5-104F
R KEBER FAHskE-74
B (&2 EBZE)
Mg 1-15%F
Hith 3204

HE-_Z-—NF+_A=t+—HIFE K
SEEREETEENERRER ([EMmE )%
BEFHABHHERRE - ETHE - W
BERERHAEFHE ZEAEREE
ENEXNRERR -R_ZT—NF+=A
=+—HB ARARESFBRBHEERN
AR B FIE G ERE B EM AU E F0E -
BB B 18 #4733,680,0008 T (& — =4 :
Tor) - BEBBRFREZHIREEER
FERREIFRIE - BEERNEE S —NF
+ZA=t—HILFEMEFRS -
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17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. &
RMB'000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2013 R_ZT—=F—H—H 138,640
Additions NE 3,760
Charged for the year FRH (2,965)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-Z—=F+-A=+—-BK
—E—NmNFE—H—H 139,435
Additions NE 3,561
Charged for the year FRMk (3,021)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H 139,975
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=%F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Analysed for reporting purposes: BB I -
Current assets MENEE 3,007 2,970
Non-current assets ERBEE 136,968 136,465
139,975 139,435

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise medium-
term leasehold land located in the PRC. Prepaid lease

payments are released to profit or loss over the lease terms AEEE EiE o

ranging between 48 to 50 years.

AEBMENES 2B AHENHHELD
HE LM - FBENESNN F48E50F M HH
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18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REFE N E] 2 s
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E=%
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARETT

Cost of unlisted investment in an associate FEEE A RIFEETIRE Z KA 2,500 2,500

Share of result and other comprehensive {5248 & Hith 2 EIES

income

2,500 2,500

I | ER 255 FR A 7] Zhejiang Xichuang Shock Absorber
Company Limited (the “Zhejian") was established in the
PRC with a registered capital of RMB10,000,000 in 2013
and is engaged in the manufacturing and sales of shock
absorber component products. Zhejian is owned as to 25%
by the Group and 75% by another investor. The Group is
able to exercise significant influence over Zhejian because
it has the power to appoint one out of the three directors
of Zhejian under the provisions stated in the Articles of
Association of Zhejian.

Summarised financial information in respect of Zhejian,
representing amounts shown in associate’s financial
statements prepared in conformity with HKFRSs is as

WO IR IR AR 2B (R R —F
—ZFAEDBEKY  EMEARARE
10,000,0007T  #E = RIRARZ Al 1RO BIE M
HEXEL - NMBRARERS —BREES
RFEE25% K 76% et o AREBEEITRTT
BEAFESN  REF/EARRENRNA
BERMAMBIG  REANBETDIR=
HREFEHP—F -

TXBURBRNRNMHER - BIBRER
R 75 ¥R 5 ZE RI P AR LB i 8 R B S R PR
i

below:

2014 2013

—E-mF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T AREBT T

Current assets TRENVEE 8,140 9,145
- cash and cash equivalent —BENRESEEY 679 30
Non-current assets IERBEE 3,751 3,229
Current liabilities mEAE (1,892) (2,375)
Non-current liabilities JEREAE = -
Revenue WS 11,436 3,689
Profit for the year FREF 1 1

Other comprehensive income HE 2wl




18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in Zhejian

19.

recognised in the consolidated financial statements is as

below:

PEEREBEREERERAF
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18. REF&E N T 2R (&)
| STRT L B T A R B A e A B S SR 2 BT
ZHOTRERS ” BREE LSRN T -
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2014 2013
—ZE—MF —E—=F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Net assets of Zhejian TR BEFE 10,000 10,000
Proportion of the Group's ownership REB TR Z
interest in Zhejian ARSI 25% 25%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in  REBEHEZ
Zhejian, adjusting by unrealised profit R BREE @ RAREIREF
(if any) EE(MA) 2,500 2,500
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. B &=
Customer
relationship Patents Total
EFB#&% == st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREEFTT AREEFIT ARETTT
COST &N
At 1 January 2013, RZFE—=F—H—H"
31 December 2013 —E—=%F+_#
and 31 December 2014 =t+—BUERZZ—M
F+-_A=+—H 3,693 555 4,148
AMORTISATION 5
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H (2,732) (555) (3,287)
Charge for the year FRMkR (449) - (449)
At 31 December 2013 and R-ZT—=%+—A#
1 January 2014 =t+—BAEkR=ZZE—mF
—H—H (3,181) (555) (3,736)
Charge for the year FR (412) - (412)
At 31 December 2014 RZZF—OFE+=H
=+—H (3,593) (555) (4,148)
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—mME+—A
=t+-A - - -
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=%+-H
=+—H 412 - 412
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19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The above customer relationship and patents were acquired
through a business combination in 2006.

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the following periods
from the acquisition date:

19. BILEE(E)

EREPEEIENTIEBR —TTRFH
EIEAPHBA

bBEpEEABRBEEMAMERFH - WA
BEAVER B YR B BIEET Y T 5 AR P

Customer relationship 8 years EPR 8F
Patents 4 years =R 49
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT CAHHERE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT
Unlisted investment: JFEFFEE :
— Limited partnership —BREB AT 65,761 65,421

On 18 November 2013, the Group has invested
HK$83,000,000 (approximately RMB65,761,000) in First
Capital Automotive Component Industry M&A Fund L.P.
(the “Partnership”), an exempted limited partnership
established in the Cayman Islands principally engaging
in making investments in and carrying out consolidations
and mergers and acquisitions of automotive component
business and assets in the PRC and overseas. The initial
size of fund managed by the Partnership amounting to
HK$200 million.

The investment is measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

AEEBR-_ZT—=ZF+—A+N\BRA
First Capital Automotive Component
Industry M&A Fund LP.([A& QA ])TE
83,000,0005% 7T (9 A R #65,761,0007T)
ZARARHEREK I EREERET
ERAT FBEBANTEEIMNEE -
BAERMHBABETHHEBNEE - 684
AFTE IR E S M) ¥ 25 35 12 /5 200,000,000 75
5o

BERANRE WRAA AR
BE AL RATFEEEBEEEESD AT
CELETE R
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21. GOODWILL 21. HE
RMB’000
ARBT T
COST 2%
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 2014 R-Z—=%—AF—H0 —ZT—=%K
—E+=—HA=+—H 29,655
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 2014 R-ZT—=9—HF—H0 —ZT—=%K
—E+=-A=+—H -
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2013 and 2014 R-E—=F_FT—NF+_-_A=+—H 29,655
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has RETRERAR - mES *F%H?m%?%it
been allocated to one PRC subsidiary which engages TR R ES M B AR R A E i E'J‘:P.W;

in manufacturing of automobile shock absorber and
suspension system products.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
management determines that there is no impairment of the
CGU containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. The calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period. The CGU’s cash
flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 2.3% (2013: 2.7%) growth rate. This growth rate is
based on the relevant industry long-term growth rate in the
jurisdiction the CGU operates. The discount rate applied is
14.51% (2013: 14.51%).

Key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the CGU's past performance and management's
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of
the CGU to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

HE-T-MFT-A=+-ALEE - E
BERA - BAHBOREEE BTN
®-

BEEABMHARESBEIRIEEREE
STEAET  ZTEXERARSREEA
MR &M ETE B B RN E I B ATl i) 54 27
WISTEE ARIE - RS FHNIR S EA BN
MNIRERERE23%(ZF—=F :2.7%)
WIBETHMREHY - ZMEREIERBECE
A EEMEM e EERNBEITENR
IS REBH - FTEAMAIEXRAE1451%
(ZZE—=F 1 1451%) °

FABENEENEZERESRBERAS
MEEEE - AR REEEHEEREN
- ARG EEREBESELESNMNBA
%ﬁ&a@Fﬁm%%EMﬁ% o EE
RE - FHEBRRENERATEEEES
E%ﬁﬁiéigﬁuﬁ’ﬁ%@(ﬁgﬁhi@ﬁi
EA BRI AIIEISFE o
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22 IEIERIE

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets: TN BIELEHRIBEENDT

Allowance Provision for
for obsolete or
doubtful slow-moving

debts inventories Total
RS =k o
RIREE FERE Fob
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREETFIT ARBEFIT
At 1 January 2013 and R-E—=F—A—H
31 December 2013 r-_E—=%+—-H
=+—H 1,961 1,846 3,807
Charge to profit or loss (Note 12)  WEzst A(B13#12) (624) 375 (249)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—F+_H
=+—H 1,337 2,221 3,558
The Group had unrecognised tax losses as follows: REBERERNFIBBEAT
RMB'000
AREFIT
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZE—=F—H—H 6,617

Reduction upon deregistration of

— ] o PR J8 % ) B e By et >

a PRC subsidiary (5,726)
Addition NE 7,290
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 RZE—=F+-_A=1+—HK

—ZE-mF—-H—H 8,181
Utilisation B (1,267)
Addition NE 8,012
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NE+=-A=+—H 14,926
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect AR EF RN Al B R - SWEHLR
of unrecognised tax losses due to the unpredictability of BRAVEBERRELEHIEEE - RZF
future profits streams. As at 31 December 2014, the tax —NFE+—A=+—H8 REEBEBARE
losses of RMB1,291,000 (2013: RMB2,558,000) will expire 1,291,0007C(ZF—=%F : AR#¥2,558,000
up to 2019 (2013: 2018). The Group has no other significant TR _E-NEF(ZE2—=F: Z=2—-N
unprovided deferred tax for the years ended 31 December FIFH -HET—=FR_T—NF+=

2013 and 2014.

A=1t—RLEE AEETEEBECR
BBRTETUA



22.

23.

24,

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 22.
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
that are received by non-PRC resident entities from 1
January 2008 onwards. At 31 December 2014, deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of Nanyang Cijian
amounting to RMB112,150,000 (2013: RMB100,222,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EERS BN EERERAT
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EEBIIE(E)
BECEMERE AN \F—A—A1
B FPEERAEGRKEGPEMEA
BIFTREUE R E R MRS B B AU TENRL - B
—E-NFE+=-A=+—H8 BERAREEEE
Wi H L TR EBNRERE R ZE TR
MEFEEAERAERBRTSREE - &
WA RS B 75 R 2k BE R BT R B 5T s FILA
R#¥112,150,000 L (=T —=%F : AR
100,222,0007T ) & & #) B 5 1 2= BRI E L 18
Ve B -

INVENTORIES 23. 78

2014 2013
—ZE—MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Raw materials B 23,307 15,472
Work-in-progress EER 4,274 9,526
Finished goods BRI B 90,278 58,834
117,859 83,832

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. E 5 Rk HMEWFIE

Trade and other receivables comprise the following:

B REMERFRBEAT A

2014 2013

—ZE—MF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Trade receivables B 5 ENIE 337,259 278,833
Less: allowance for doubtful trade debts & : REER (8,915) (13,074)
328,344 265,759

Bills receivables EUEE 8,990 14,000
Other receivables (note) H b e R IE (A7) 36,798 28,684
Less: allowance for doubtful other debts  J5 : HAib REEEE (15,628) (7,137)
21,170 21,547

Value-added tax recoverable AR OB R 2,360 2,068
Advances to suppliers At e 8 RN 14,197 4,042
Total trade and other receivables B 5N EMEW R IAEEE 375,061 307,416
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Note:

Included in the balance is (i) an amount of approximately RMB nil
(2013: RMB570,000), net of allowance for doubtful other debts of
RMB13,608,000 (2013: RMB5,117,000), representing service/rental
receivable in respect of storage and machineries from a third party; (ii)
RMB6,930,000(2013: RMB6,930,000), net of allowance for doubtful
other debts of RMB2,020,000 (2013: RMB2,020,000) deposits to a
creditor as security for other borrowings; and (iii) balances comprise
of employees’ travel advances, deposits paid to local tax authorities,
rental deposits and certain prepayments, all of which are expected to
be recovered within twelve months after the end of reporting period.

The ageing of trade receivables presented based on invoice
date (also approximate to the date of revenue recognition),
net of allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

24 EF R HMEWFEIEEZ)

ZEEBEE(RRETREEMER—RE=F
WRY, HMERBHNARBZL(ZZE—=F:
AR#570,0007T)  IBEMREREEARYE
13,608,0007C(=Z— =% : AKR¥5,117,0007T) ;
(PR EAM ARG T — B ERAEAERNZEESA
[ %6,930,0007T(—ZF— =4 : ARK%6,930,000
7o) IR E R ERE B AR 2,020,000t (==
—=4 : AR¥2,020,0007T) : i) {EE =K
B XA FHAREENES RESESUARSE
TFIEMREEROEES  ZSEHRTEHRRERR
B+ —@EARKE -

REFH(REZR WS P EE) 250 E
S MR BRI B R T

2014 2013
—F-mE =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
0 to 90 days 0E90k 293,872 240,035
91 to 180 days 91E180K 15,377 15,671
181 to 365 days 181£365K 12,159 -
1 to 2 years —EMF 6,936 10,053
328,344 265,759

Movement in the allowance for doubtful trade debts: B o REBEESHMT -
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Beginning balance FHEER 13,074 13,074
Addition =0 1,997 -

Reversal of allowance for doubtful RERE BRI

trade debts (6,156) -
Ending balance FRER 8,915 13,074

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has
assessed the potential customer’s credit quality and
defined credit limit to each customer on individual basis.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year.

EEMNEAFEFA  ARBECHEBERP
MEBEERETHE  TRENEERES
HEPHEERE - AIBREPNRESEF

Rt — K -



24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period and no impairment is
necessary for those balances which are not past due.

At 31 December 2014, included in the Group's trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB34,472,000 (2013:
RMB15,671,000), which are past due for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and amounts are
still considered recoverable based on repayment history
of respective customer. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

EERS BN EERERAT
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24. ES5 R EMBWRIEE)

PORTEE Z UG R AT E Ry - AN S [E]
ERERMELEEZRREERENRE
HENFENEEERNEMNEE - MR8
HW AR ERERE -

RZE—NFE+—_A=+—H  #EEEEY
AR34,472,000 (= —=F : AR
15,671,0007T) (IEBT AR EEHE 5 FEI
FIEGES  MZERBEEREEH - HEER
EEERVESAEBERIREABEFER
EE - REFREDEAATEE - Bt - K
EEWARRZERBHERAEBERE - &
SEBARRZEEGIT B TWIERR -

EEHERRENE S R UTRRE

2014 2013

—E—lmF —T=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREEF T

91 to 180 days 912180k 15,377 15,671
181 to 365 days 181E365K 12,159 -
1 to 2 years —EWF 6,936 -
34,472 15,671

Bills receivables represent $R17#& X EZE (“banker’s
acceptances”), i.e. time drafts accepted and guaranteed
for payment by banks in the PRC. Those banks accepting
the banker's acceptances, which are state-owned banks
or commercial banks in the PRC (the “PRC Banks"), are
the primary obligors for payment on the due date of such
banker’'s acceptances. The Group accepts the settlement of
trade receivables by customers using banker’'s acceptances
accepted by the PRC Banks on a case by case basis.

B RIBERIT AL ER ([RITALE
£1) - ARBRRITHRARAEL R ER
ZEMESR - ZFRIRITELEZ ZRTT
ATEBEARITHARRT(HERTL)
WRIRITALEZZHHAR/TIZEEXN
A o AEERERIBEREZE X TP ERHER
TTERZBITERLERENE S BYER -
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24.

25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The ageing of bills receivables, presented based on receipt
date, is as follows:

24.

BESRHEMBYRRIEE)
RIS ERE R IR A 25T

2014 2013

—F-mE =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR

0 to 90 days 0Z90K 8,990 14,000

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from
0.35% to 0.50% (31 December 2013: 0.35% to 0.50%) per
annum.

Restricted bank balances, carrying interest at market rates
ranging from 2.6% to 3.3% (31 December 2013: 2.8% to
3.3%) per annum, represent amounts deposited with banks
as pledge for the bills payable with an original maturity of
three to six months issued to suppliers for the purchase of
raw materials.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the PRC and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to foreign
exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables comprise the following:

25.

26.

ZREBTESR ROTERRRE

RTEHRFEMNENTF035%E050% (=
—=F+=-A=+—H : 035%&0.50%) °

FEMENF26%E33%(—F—=F+_"7
=t+—H :28%%33%) R HIBITE
# - BT RRRITIE AN EBEERR 2 &
B ORENERDETTHRERNUEBE RV
B BERHBRA=ZZ/NER -

ARBIAAETBEARLE - ME+BERE
HE AT BBATHIINEE HIFTR o

BE5RHMBENRE
HHRAMENREREUTEE

2014 2013
—E—-mEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Trade payables E SN FRIAE 268,698 205,218
Bills payables R 82,570 74,700
351,268 279,918
Other payables Hotth A 3008 8,165 5,706
Other payables to employees (note) HAibfEE B WFIE (H7:7) 1,097 1,588
Other tax payables H A HiE 28,400 18,268
Other accruals HibfEst &R 19,717 11,168
Payroll and welfare payables B TE RAEH 8,798 8,938
417,445 325,586
Less: Amount shown under non-current & : ZIRAIERE)

liabilities BETHEE (777) (1,048)

Total trade and other payables shown IRRRBBETHNES X
under current liabilities HAb T FRIELREE 416,668 324,538




26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables
presented based on invoice date at the end of the reporting

PEEREBEREERERAF
—EB-MEFR
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26. E5 R EHMENRIEE)
TR ARRE RN E 5 RN REREZA

HZ2DIBRE DT

periods:
2014 2013
—E-mF —F=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
Within 90 days 90RAA 234,446 177,358
91-180 days 91E 180K 31,125 24,922
181-365 days 181£365K 1,247 1,135
1-2 years —EWF 1,880 1,803
268,698 205,218

The following is an ageing analysis of bills payables,

AT AR EIRZETH

H2IWENR

presented based on issuance date at the end of each BRI DT -
reporting period:

2014 2013
—ZE—MEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBT T
Within 30 days 30K 11,140 -
31 to 60 days 31E60KA 20,400 24,700
91 to 180 days 91£180KA 51,030 50,000
82,570 74,700

Trade payables and bills payables principally comprise
amounts outstanding for purchase of materials. The
average credit period for purchase of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that sufficient financial resources are maintained to
meet its financial obligation as they fall due.

BHRNFERENZEEIZEEBEMH
ANOFR - BEERWFHEEHRWO

R REBEERAMBERR

B BURTERAE

F 75 2 00 B 75 B TR UA FE A B 7% B AR B HRT &Y

FE=dh
hiE=S
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

Note:Other payables to employees are interest-free and the settlement
of the obligations is estimated to occur through to 2026. The
payable to employee are calculated at the net present value
of estimated future net cash flows of the payment obligation,
discounted at 3.6% per annum at 31 December 2013 and 2014,
respectively. Management has allocated the payables that are
expected to be settled within twelve months after the end of
reporting period as current liabilities. No assets was legally
restricted for the purposes of settling the payables.

26. EZ R HMERFIEE)

Bt EtEMFEENZKEBEARE » HZES
AEHBE S NEHREERE KT
—=ZFR-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—H" &
5 T8 B & SOB RN HE (L M0k OF
HEeRENFRELHIIESFI6%HILL
KRR E - TR EREBAERREHRRE
T _ERNEENENRESIERBAERE -
B B R E R S TE N OB & GORR H o

2014 2013
—B-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETF T
At beginning of the year F4) 1,588 2,186
Payment ES (566) (726)
Accretion during the year FRIE 75 128
At end of the year FR 1,097 1,588

Analysed for reporting purposes: MMEBHNDIAT -
Current liabilities mBEE 320 540
Non-current liabilities JERENAE 777 1,048
1,097 1,588

27.BORROWINGS 27. B

2014 2013
—ET—-mEF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBEFIT
Bank borrowings IRITIER 446,908 423,860
Debentures [=C:) 32,696 -
Other borrowing HibE 6,972 6,936
486,576 430,796
Unsecured it e 323,576 286,936
Secured Vgl 163,000 143,860

486,576 430,796
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27.BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 27. R (&)
The contractual maturity dates are as follows: AHFIEHMT ¢
2014 2013
—ZE—MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Within one year —FER 338,744 295,593
More than one year, Bl —F
but not exceeding two years BT BBRF 70,832 36,641
More than two years, EBim
but not exceeding five years BTEBTF 77,000 98,5662
486,576 430,796
Less: Amounts due for settlement S ER12(B AR
within 12 months (shown under BENEE
current liabilities) GIRRAREBET) (338,744) (295,593)
Amounts shown under FIRRIERBIBET
non-current liabilities Enfe ] 147,832 135,203
The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group's REBEEFNEREMNEX(ETHEERE O
borrowings are as follows: AR
2014 2013
—E—mEF —=—=
Fixed-rate borrowings TEBMER 5%6.0%-6.9% HTFE56%-851%
per annum per annum
The Group has pledged certain assets to secure loan AEFBECEFETEENAAEEREENE
facilities granted to the Group. The carrying values of the DEVEVEER - DIIBEENEmEWNT
assets pledged are as follows:
2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%F T ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKRE 198,700 75,048
Land use rights + b PR AR 103,436 64,201

302,136 139,249
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28. DEFERRED INCOME 28. IEIEW A
Note a Note b Total
FffzEa MizEb et
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREETTT AREFTT
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=F—H—H 2,992 6,268 9,260
Credit to profit or loss FrAE= (348) (834) (1,182)
At 31 December 2013 and 1 W-—ZT—=%+—"H 2,644 5,434 8,078
January 2014 =t+—HE-Z—NF
—A—A
Additions N - 3,390 3,390
Credit to profit or loss FFAERE (348) (1,030) (1,378)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZE—NF+=A 2,296 7,794 10,090
=+-n

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HIEEOHAITAT
2014 2013
—E-ImF ZE—=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T AREEFIT
Current liabilities* TmENBRE* 817 865
Non-current liabilities FEmMBAEE 9,273 7,213
10,090 8,078

*  The carrying amount of deferred income designated for
expenditure which is expected to be released to profit or loss in
the next twelve months is classified as current.

Notes:

a. The grant represents an amount of RMB4,200,000 designated
for the expenditure on development of the recycling and purifying
facilities received in 2009 which was deferred and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.

b.  Grants received in relation to acquisition of certain plant and
equipment and were recorded as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and are credited to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.

* o FRERRARIR A —{E A AR Bz E R
MBRERAREER D B ARE AR -

a. EHER-_ZZALFRIHARE
4,200,000 74 5 7€ 1 7 2 B W R Fb 5%
MEEIBS YRR RN EEEENTE
HA(E A F R B AR A R A JBRE o

b. ZHWHIIMERES THE RKEMK
B WHEARA M BRI R B ARRIIEER
FEW AR B E R TERIE A B A
BREKRELEF B -
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29. PROVISIONS 29. 16

Warranty
Provision
RIEBRE
RMB’'000
ARET T
(note)
(K15%)
At 1 January 2013 R-_ZT—=F—H—H 7,454
Additions a0 10,666
Utilisations B3t (10,620)

At 31 December 2013 and R-ZEBE—=F+-"FA=+—HK
1 January 2014 —E—mMFE—H—H 7,500
Additions 18840 12,528
Utilisations A (8,408)
At 31 December 2014 R-E—NNF+_A=+—H 11,620

Note: The warranty provision represents management’s best estimate
of the Group’s liability under an average warranty period of
two years granted on products, based on prior experience for
defective products.

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Hrat - REBBREERESAKSERERRHD
FHMEREHMAENE EOKEMR
it WABERBREERNERAESE -

30. iR 4
Number Share
of shares capital
B ;1S
HK$
BT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

BIXEE0. 18 TR AR

Authorised: JATE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 RZE—=F—H—H
and 2014 ZE-=FRZT-MF
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRARE

At 1 January 2013 WZE—=F—H—H 320,000,000 32,000,000
Issue of shares (note) TR (MIRE) 64,000,000 6,400,000

At 31 December 2013 and 2014 RIE—=FK_FT—NF
+=-—A=+—H 384,000,000 38,400,0000
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

31.

30. RA (&)

2014 2013
—E-mF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARET T

Share capital presented in consolidated RERE FEREIIR Z A

statement of financial position

31,318 31,318

Note: On 22 May 2013, 64,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each of
the Company, amounting to HK$6,400,000 (approximately
RMB5,101,000), were issued at HK$1.30 per share by way
of placing. The new shares rank pari passu with then existing
shares in all aspects.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

The minimum lease payment under operating lease in
respect of office premises amounted to RMB5,767,000
(2013: RMB2,500,000) for the year ended 31 December
2014.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

M R—E—=FRHA-+-H KXAQF
64,000,000 & R EEO0. 1B (EES
6,400,000 7T (49 A R #5,101,0007T ) ) #9
B - BIBEE R ER1.308 T ERK R
T FMBMBERBERNHESHFEHYZER
FHER o

31. REHEAIE
AEBEREAEA
HE-_Z-NME+_A=+—HIFE
BEELEHERNAMENREBAENFK
BAREED, 767,000 (ZE—=F : AR
2,500,0007T) ©

RBERR  FEERBNTHELEHEE
BRI E N RORIER B BE AT -

2014 2013

— ik —F=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETTT

Within one year —%FR 1,362 1,985

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain office premises. Leases are negotiated
for original terms of 1 to 2 years with fixed rental.

REMENTEARERETHAIEMERE
ReiEe - HERI Z2F R RAEFE

e
EETE ©



32.

33.

34.
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OTHER COMMITMENTS 32. HAA&E
2014 2013
—ZE—MF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Capital expenditure in respect of WS R Se HE BR Y
acquisition of plant and machinery and EARAYT R
construction costs AR A
— Contracted for but not provided —BEHEERR
in the consolidated IRE ISIRER B
financial statements 28,300 27,944
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33. B A IRE
Compensation of key management personnel FEEE A S RM

The remuneration of directors of the Company and other
members of key management during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2014 were as follows:

REBEE-_Z—=6R-_ZT—NE+=A
S+ HILFE  AANEERAMEEE
BABBFMIT

2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Short-term benefits SRR 5,009 4,634
Post-employment benefits RNTEF) 47 49
5,056 4,683
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 34. ERBRIFHE

The employees of the Group are members of state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company's subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

AEEMEESBTEBRMEFNBERER
RABHGEINKE - AARMEARAR
TERARNE T A D L ARKRER BT
DR HEAE S - AREBFURKRENEEIM
ME—BERIEHATEIA T AREHRR -
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B2 —F—F+=—A=1+—HIFE

35. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

As 31 December 2014, the Company has the following
indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, subsidiaries:

35. B ARFE
R-ZE—NE+—_A=+—H KRIEREF
¥ AARHAUNTEEZAENMB AR ¢

Place and date of Issued and fully Effective equity
incorporation/ paid share/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities Legal form
HRARL/ R BRARMR REEEAER
KELRER ZHEREH B/ ERRE AR TERH EERR
2014 2013
ZE-mF —E-=F
Merit Leader Investment Limited  British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
10 March 2012 BO000ET  (directly)  (directly)  HREER company
HERIFS 100%(E8) 100%(E%) ABRAT
“Z-Z#=A1H
Guang Da (China) Automotive Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
Components Holdings Limited 14 June 2012 15T RERR company
NGNS B MAERAT
BRAT ZT-ZERATEA
Nanyang Cijian Auto Shock PRC HK$170,000,000 100% 100%  Research, development  Foreign invested limited
Absorber Company Limited 23 June 2005 EE: and manufacture liability company
EGIRAERREERLT  TE of automobile HEREERAT
ZITRERAZTEA shock absorber and
suspension system
products
T REERERRER
BRAOER
Haikou Danjiang Auto Shack PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Not yet commenced Domestic limited liability
Absorber Company Limited** 20 March 2006 ARE1BET business company
BOFTAEAESARAA 8 HARRER BERERAT

“EEREZAC1H
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35. B ARFE(E)

Place and date of Issued and fully Effective equity
incorporation/ paid share/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital to the Group Principal activities Legal form
e/ R BRTRAE AREREER
WEARERE ZHERAH B/ ERRE R ITEH EERR
2014 2013
ZE-mF —T--%
Way Assauto Sr* Italy Euro10,000 100% 100%  Research, development  Private limitedliability
EAMEIRNE 21 June 2012 10,000B7T of automabile shock company
EAM absorber products LABBAT
-F-- RERRERTE
~AZT-H
Ordos City Xijian Auto Shock PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Research, development  Domestic limited liability
Absorber Company Limited** 14 August 2013 ARE0BEET and manufacture company
DRLETRRAERHRR e of automobile MBERLE
BRAT “E-Z5/\ATmA shock absorber and
suspension system
products
W RgE e R RER
BREGER
First Bridge Limited BV US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding Private limited liability
7 November 2014 B3 REER company
ZERAHS MABRAR
“E-MET-AtH

* In January 2013, Nanyang Cijian acquired total equity interest in
Way Assauto Srl for Euro10,000 from a third party.

** The English name is the unofficial translation of respective
Chinese name and is for identification purposes only.

None of the above subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the years or at the end of reporting period.

BRIAE -

EREHES

* RZT—=%F—F - FEEHMELA10,0008 7T
Mm% = F U EEWay Assauto SriZERARIE

** RNABANEBETXAWNFEETES  EH]

REREBERR - EAlE QR BEET
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36.

37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the Company’s
special general meeting held on 19 October 2013, the
Company approved and adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which will remain in force for a period of 10
years from the date of its adoption. Details of the Scheme
are set out in section titled ‘Share Option Scheme’ in the
annual reports.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014,
no share options were granted under the Scheme by the
Company. In addition, as of 31 December 2013 and 2014,
no share options under the Scheme were outstanding.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY

36. B ESTE

RER-_ZF—=F1+A+NBETZARE
BEREFNASBEBECERRAR  ARAH
R — AR B ([R5 E]) - B
MAHEF AR+ F - ZEFEFBERNA
FIRIBRAERTE 5 -

REBE-_Z—=Frk_ZFT—EOF+=A
=t+—HLFE  ARARBEREZIER
HERRKE - o R-E—=FE R _F—N
F+ZA=+—8  ZAZBETHENERT
1 2 BERR#E -

37. "R AMBER

2014 2013

—E—lF —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R AREBFIT

Investment in an unlisted subsidiary R—REE LB AFAIEE 65,751 65,751
Deferred expenditure EERF S 490 -
Amount due from a subsidiary (note a) JE Uy — RSB B A B IB (A ata) 128,274 127,611
Bank balances and cash RITEBIRE 33,293 88
Trade and other payables 5 MEMENFRIE (1,608) (2,259)
Amount due to a subsidiary (note a) FEAT—FEM B A R B (Hita) (17,219) (9,374)
Borrowings (=T (32,696) -
NET ASSETS EEFE 176,285 181,817

OWNER'S EQUITY BB AR

Share capital R A 31,318 31,318
Reserves (note b) @ (M atb) 144,967 150,499
TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY HEARREE 176,285 181,817

Notes:

a. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on
demand.

b. Reserves comprise share premium of RMB186,462,000 (2013:
RMB186,462,000) and accumulated losses of RMB41,495,000
(2013: RMB35,963,000).

#isz -
o HERBARE  EMRAREEE -

b. REERERGEEARE 1864620007 (=
T—=4F: AR¥186,462,0007T) & R+t/E
BARKA1,495,000L(ZE—=F : AR
35,963,0007T) °
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38.EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 38. MEHREIE

On 31 December 2014, the Company entered into a sale RZFE—WmF+A=+—8  KQFE]
& purchase agreement for acquiring 100% equity interest Y EE B K 2E100% % & B AR
in a company and a shareholder’s loan in an aggregate RABREES T 2 EREREZ AT URE
amount of approximately HK$5,000,000 from an individual 7,138,443 7 7T Ui i 4258 /5,000,000 7% 7T 2
who is a close family to the ultimately controlling party FRERE R o WG - B B AR
of the Company at a consideration of HK$7,138,443. RAMEZEWMB AR - RAMBHREAEH -
Upon the completion of the acquisition, the acquiree will B AR TERK - AFEEHNBEHAZZ —
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As at F+-A=t+—HBzR&E-

the date of this financial statements, the acquisition has
not been completed. Details of which are set out in the
announcement dated 31 December 2014.



6 China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings Limited
14 Annual Report 2014

Glossary
)

In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Information), unless the context otherwise
requires, the following expression shall have the following
meanings:

2014 Financial Year” for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

"AGM" the annual general meeting of the Company

"Articles” or "Articles of  the Articles of Association of the Company, as
Association” amended from time to time

"Automobile Aftermarket” the secondary market of the automobile
industry, concerned with the manufacturing,
remanufacturing, distribution, retailing and
installation of vehicle parts, equipment and
accessories after the sale of automobile by the
original equipment manufacturer to the consumers

“Beijing Automobile” Beijing Automobile Works Co., Ltd ()52 84
AR AT, our customer, an Independent Third
Party

“Board” the board of Directors

“BVI" the British Virgin Islands

“Changan Automobile” Chongging Changan Automobile Co., Ltd (&
ERZABRMAERAA), our customer, an
Independent Third Party

“Chery" Chery Automobile Co., Ltd (¥ TERMHARD
Al), our customer, an Independent Third Party

"Chongging Lifan” Chongging Lifan Passenger Vehicle Co., Ltd.
(EENMFASEERAF), our customer, an
Independent Third Party

“Company” China Vehicle Components Technology Holdings
Limited (REIEHEHHREZERAERAFR), an
exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange

"

“Director(s) the director(s) of the Company

RAFHRACBLAZ AR E R BEERERIN)
BIEXERBE  THAEEANTEE

[ZZ—mF ¥ BECZ-WET-A=t+-H
HHEE IFHBER

[(kRBEFAE] £ ARIRREFAE

ke i ARATEETNERAN
[AEERMmal)

[MEERDS] &  ARTEN-ADS  PRER
BREREHEARRAEEE
REGTERIE - R RIS
& BRE 2¥ TERZE
s

[Em7E B OARAERERARAR R
WEP  BUE=]

[E2g) B E%e

[(RERLEE] #® EBRLES

[RZAE] ¥ BERZABRNHBERAF R
P0ERP  BuE=)

[ ) B ARAERLBERAF - %N
RFBUE=]

[EEAN ®  BEONKREARAE - #M

WEF  BUE=F

[ARE) ®  TEESTIANMRERERA
A —FARFEHSEMA LA
RHRBHRAR - ERONER
it

[E%] B AREER



“Dongfeng Automobile”

"Dongfeng Peugeot”

"FAW-Volkswagen”

"Geely”

"Group”

"Haima Auto”

“Independent Third
Parties”

“INED(s)"

"Jianghuai Automobile”

"Latest Practicable Date"

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

"Model Code”

Dongfeng Automobile Co., Ltd. (B, 5= KK ER
A7]), our customer, an Independent Third Party

Dongfeng Peugeot Citroen Automobile Company
Ltd (##E 5= AR 2D A]), our customer, an
Independent Third Party

FAW-Volkswagen Automobile Company Ltd (—)5
AFRAEAR AR, our customer, an Independent
Third Party

Zhejiang Geely Automobile Parts and Components
Purchase Limited (/L& M)A ETHHRBEERA
al), our customer, an Independent Third Party

the Company and its subsidiaries

FAW Haima Automobile Co., Ltd. (/585555
BR 22 &]), our customer, an Independent Third Party

Persons or companies which are independent of
and not connected with any of the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the controlling
shareholders of the Company and members of
the Group and their respective associates, and
“Independent Third Party” means any of them

the independent non-executive Directors

Anhui Jianghuai Automobile Co., Ltd (ZHITER
BERRMHER AT, our customer, an Independent
Third Party

23 April 2015, being the latest practicable date for
the purpose of ascertaining certain information
contained in this annual report prior to its
publication

23 November 2011

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers

[REE ]

[RERE]

[—1TKR]

(&7

A&

]

[B5AE]

[BUE=7]

[BUHFHTES]

[TDREAE]

[HERER

BEGIEE)

[ LT AH]

[ LAl

PEEREBEREERERAF

“z-preg 147

RERERNBBRAF
RF BUE=)

» H IR

BEAEERLR  HMANET
FBUE=)

—ARRAEBRDF - A
RP BUE=]

MIENAETRHRBAERD
A RPNER - BUF=T

/NS =N
—UBEREERAR BN
BE BUF=H

BUYRRLFEARAANEES
FEETHAR - ARAMER
BRRRAREEKERAZR AN
BELRBRENALTRRA
MIBLE=T7 I LAEFRAL
BN

BUFATES
ZETERERDERAR &
MnEF  BUE=7

ZZ-REMAZT=H - 8%

ERENTETERARNNET

ARME ORRERTTEA

ZE——5+-A=1=H

B FriE S LR A

LHETAEFETESRSN
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“Nanyang Cijan”

“OEM Market”

“Plenty Venture”

“PRC" or “China"

"Prospectus”

“RMB”

"SAIC Motor”

“SFO”"

"Shareholder(s)"

"Share Option Scheme”

"Shares”

"Stock Exchange”

“Wealth Max"

Nanyang Cijan Auto Shock Absorber Co., Ltd.
(TR AERIERSEBR AR (formerly known
as Nanyang Jinguan Auto Shock Absorber Co.,
Ltd (BfEeE AERiREAEMR2AFE)), a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC
on 23 June 2005 and one of our wholly-owned
subsidiaries

the automobile market of original automobile
manufacturers

Plenty Venture Holdings Limited (2B A E
A]), a company incorporated in the BVI with
limited liability on 1 July 2010, and is wholly
owned by Mr. Zhao Zhijun (an executive Director)

the People’'s Republic of China which excludes
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC and Taiwan

the prospectus of the Company dated 11
November 2011

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

SAIC Motor Corporation Limited (358 &= E &
fAEREAF), our customer, an Independent Third
Party

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)

the holder(s) of the Share(s)

the share option scheme adopted by the
Company pursuant to the written resolutions of
the Shareholders of the Company passed on 19
October 2011

the ordinary shares issued by the Company, with
a nominal value of HK$0.10 each

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Wealth Max Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability on
12 July 2010, our Controlling Shareholder and
is wholly beneficially owned by Mr. Wilson Sea
(formerly known as Mr. Xi Chunying)

[EEAL)

[RERERER
i)

[37 )

[RE)

[HER]

N

[LgaE]

[ &R

(R

R iR 2]

[Bxin ]

(B2 p )

[Wealth Max

R AT E R RS ERAT
(NEEBETAERREAR
A7) ~MR-FTTEEAA
~ = BEP BRI EEA
PEREMEH-M2ANER
al

RAERERNTETS

RRERBERAR —AR-ZF
—ERELA-RERBRIES
AR IMNAEREERR - L
BTEWITES)2EHA

FEARLNE  TREEE
TERMEHTRERAE

ARRAPAZE——5+-A
T-RNBERER

hEMETEBARS

LEREEERNBBERGF #
MeER  BuE=)

EEEPIETIEEA R BEE
il

RiAsEA

ARARBERRARRR-F
——FTATARBBNEDR
ERFMN B ETE

AARIBETEREE0BT
VERR D

BRMARIMAERAR

Wealth Max Holdings Limited
—RRZE-TFtA+TZBE
RERAHESHMKINERE
A7 AERARE KA Wilson
Seat E(AIBEFULE)2E
BEanEE
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